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November 2019 
 
THE LETTER FROM THE APOSTLE EZEKIEL 
GUTI TO ALL THE CHURCHES OF FORWARD 
IN FAITH ALL OVER WHEREVER FORWARD 
IN FAITH IS, IN PREPARATION TO ENTER 
THE NEW YEAR FOR THE TEN DAYS OF 
PRAYER AND FASTING. 
 
Greetings in the wonderful name of our Lord Jesus 
Christ. GRACE AND PEACE be multiplied to you, 
in the knowledge of God and of Jesus our LORD. 
Please read this letter slowly and carefully in every 
service during 10 days of Prayer and Fasting, so 

that everyone clearly understands what God is 
saying to us through the Holy Spirit. 
 
The year 2020 is different from all the other years. 
We need to be strong as never before, because 
there are things in the spiritual world that I cannot 
be able to explain. Except that I encourage 
everyone to make sure that your relationship with 
God is right. We know that some of us we didn't finish 
praying for spiritual ears and eyes leading to the 
genuine fear of God. We need to continue. 
 
The year 2020 the foundation of everything is Love 
of God in the church, which will create prayer and 
fellowshipping together, with one another, bringing 
food and eating together Acts 2:42 and 46. The 
Bible calls this fellowship "Love Feast" Jude 12. 
 
The foundation of Love of God will create praying, 
fellowshipping, inviting friends and eating together 
the food we bring. This will help when the period 
of spiritual drought in some places comes. I am 
speaking to the mixed generation, but my 
message is to the emerging generation who are 
coming into leadership. 
 
Love and fellowship will cause the church to grow 
and cause joy in people. Acts 8:8, Acts 13:52. We 
wont lose people in the time of spiritual dryness 
when the Love of God is full in the church. Be not 
afraid when you see ungodly coming to your 
fellowship. Wherever there is eating it invites even 
wrong people. When Jesus saw wrong people 
coming, He warned the disciples. Luke 12 v 1-5. 
READ. 
 
People do not stay in church because of anointing 
only and preaching, but because of the love of God in 
the church. The key is the Love of God. Love never 
fails. 1 Corinthians 13:13. 
 
Continue in the teaching of FIF, fellowshipping, 
eating together and in prayers. 
 
As always in the 10 days of prayer and fasting, 
prayer bands and conventions are very important. 
Prayer conventions 2nd to 5th January 2020. 
 
Warning to those who are at work. Be alert. 
Reminding the pregnant women, we don't want 
you to be sick. Don't fast. 
 
Thank you for praying for me as I pray for you. God 
bless you and strengthen you. 
 
Yours servant of the Lord to the servants and 
saints of the Lord. 
 
Ezekiel H. Guti.

Apostle Ezekiel H. & Dr Eunor Guti 
From the Archbishop’s Office  
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Bishop Dr JDK & Dr M Samasuwo 

Bishop Dr J & G Chikwawawa 

National Administrator Overseer D & R Makuwere 

Samasuwo 
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Introduction 
God spoke to our father, His Servant Apostle Prof. 
Ezekiel H. Guti in November 2019 concerning the 
year 2020. This led him to write the “Ten Days of 
Prayer and Fasting” letter to the Church as 
preparation to enter the New Year. 
 
The letter clearly states that “The year 2020 is 
different from all the other years. We need to be 
strong as never before because there are things 
in the spiritual world that I cannot be able to 
explain. Except that I encourage everyone to 
make sure that your relationship with God is 
right. We know that some of us didn’t finish 
praying for spiritual ears and eyes leading to the 
genuine fear of God. We need to continue……”. 
We therefore began the year on a cautious note, 
following this prophetic declaration and an 
unprecedented warning concerning 2020, which 
had things that our father was not able to explain 
except for everyone to be strong as never before. 
 
The nation went into TEN DAYS of PRAYER and 
FASTING as usual, with a difference that our 
mother, Apostle Dr Eunor Guti came with her team 
to pray with the Female Pastors and the Male 
Pastors who joined in at the end. We now appreciate 
that this could only be by divine appointment, to 
cover the nation as the pandemic was looming. 
 
Though the church had been prophetically warned 
and the Pastors’ Deeper life Conference held in 
January 2020, the sudden and devastating break 
out of COVID-19 had serious negative 
repercussions on the operations of the entire 
church. Like the rest of the world, we went into lock 
down which affected all our public gatherings from 
March, our places of worship with all services and 
meetings moving to electronic platforms. The 
Europe Leaders’ Deeper life Conference (29th July – 
2nd August 2020) had to be cancelled. 
 
Despite these difficult conditions, God continued to 
show His faithfulness to His Servant and His people. 
This was evident through the following: - 
a) a great wave of individual and corporate prayer at 
every level; an increase in the spirit of prayer as 
Pastors, leaders and saints meet virtually to pray,  
b) high attendances for online prayers and services 
with an increase in tithes and offerings. 
 
In July, the Executive then established a National 
Covid-19 Task Force, as a sub-committee of the 
Management Board, with a mandate to guide the 
nation in the interpretation of government 
guidelines, risk assessment and preparation for 
return to places of worship. The Task Force 

structure was replicated to the provinces, 
instrumental in ensuring compliance to health and 
safety, also making it possible for practical concerns 
like fear to be dealt with appropriately.   
 
Different ministries and groups were able to hold 
online conferences, conventions, seminars and 
meetings. Most scheduled calendar events, whether 
provincial, regional or assembly have been 
successfully taking place, including National Council 
meetings. It was not possible to proceed with the 
Bishop’s rotation although some Provinces and 
Regions managed to host them through virtual 
platforms. 
 
Missions Project 2020 
Probably the most notable achievement of the year 
was the working of Missions and raising £1m+ in just 
2 months of June and July!! This was indeed great 
grace bestowed upon the nation, being able to 
partner with the Servant & Apostle of God towards 
the “Go Yee Therefore” mandate during such 
challenging times.  
 
International Sunday Services 
These came as the pandemic and its challenges 
was beginning to surface and allowed the nation to 
keep focussed. We highly appreciate the love from 
our father the Apostle & Servant of God, for 
facilitating these special morning and evening 
services for His children.  
 
Though the morning services have stopped, we 
have gone back to having virtual local services. This 
is in preparation for return to places of worship, 
which will eventually come with continued intensified 
prayers and the lifting of the third lockdown on 2nd 
December 2020.  
 
Kingdom Wealth Creation 
After a successful Missions Project 2020, we 
continued working Home Talents, with amazing 
results throughout the UK and Ireland. We 
witnessed the demonstration of God’s grace as 
every province surpassed all their expectations. 
Surely the lives of people will never be the same 
going forward, as the vision of the school of talents 
continues to be fulfilled.  
 
Conclusion 
The Church in the United Kingdom truly witnessed 
the unmerited favour of the God of our father, as 
lives are being preserved despite the nation being 
ravaged by Covid-19. We highly appreciate the 
Executive for putting in place the National and 
Provincial Covid-19 Task Forces which are assisting 
the nation with interpretation of government 
guidelines, to ensuring compliance for health safety. 
 
 
 
 
  

EXECUTIVE OVERVIEW REPORT 
(by the Bishops & National Administrator) 
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2020 STATISTICS SUMMARY 
 

  
SEEP NLP GMP SCOT NEP 2020 

Totals 
2019  
Totals 

PROVINCIAL 
STRUCTURE 

 

Total Regions  4 3 6 2 4 19 20 

Total Assemblies 10 14 21 4 11 60 71 

Home Cell Groups  50 37 ? 20 32 139 142 

      

LEADERSHIP (couples as 
1) 

     

Pastors 5 3 11 2 3 24 34 

Elders  100 67 158 28 45 398 315 

Deacons 73 51 133 12 34 303 233 

Totals 178 121 302 42 82 725 582 

      

Membership (Headcount)      

Child Evangelism 166 169 214 42 141 732 740 

Young Generation 76 79 123 24 56 358 360 

Youth 127 137 149 21 80 514 526 

Men  130 114 166 42 102 554 536 

Women 246 238 339 73 180 1076 1066 

Totals 745 737 991 202 559 3234 3228 

      

ACTIVITIES      

New Converts 11 9 0 0 2 22 64 

Water Baptism  0 0 0 0 0 0 22 

Holy Spirit Baptism  2 0 0 1 2 5 14 

Dedicated Children 3 0 0 0 0 3 9 

 

Abbreviations: - 

SEEP – South East England Province.  
NLP   - North London Province. 
NEP -   North England Province 

GMP – Greater Midlands Province (includes Wales, ROI & Ireland, Isle of Man). 

SC0T – Scotland Province. 

 
  

HIGHLIGHTS 
 

There is no significant change in total membership figures even though the pandemic restrictions 
curtailed most activities, notably the collection and submission of accurate statistics. There were 
no water baptisms in compliance with the standing social distancing measures; the 5 Holy Spirit 
baptisms were before lockdown, with possibly more taking place in homes but going unreported.  
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GREATER MIDLANDS PROVINCE 
 

 
 
Executive Summary  
We thank the God of our father, Apostle Dr Ezekiel 
H Guti who has kept His church through the Covid-
19 pandemic and lock down. He favoured us with a 
good team of Pastors, Elders and Deacons; our 
Province of 7 regions continued to be stable during 
these unprecedented times. Prayer meetings, 
ministry events and seminars were all virtual with 
good attendance, to equip and revive the church. 
We also greatly benefitted from international 
speakers. 
We believe prayer remains the firm anchor as many 
people were affected but healed from Covid-19 and 
other diseases. Despite these challenging times, the 
province has recorded an increase in tithing and 
receives unwavering support from our Bishop and 
National Administrator.  
 
Programmes & Activities 
PC & Seminars 
We held a successful virtual leader’s seminar over 
two days, with the Secretary General Rev M 
Nyambo and National Administrator as the 
speakers. We also held successful virtual Provincial 
Council meetings which were well attended.   
 
Missions Despite the pandemic period 
characterised by various difficulties, the province 
performed exceptionally well in the working of 
Missions.  
 
Prayer and Fasting 
Meetings were held at all levels and ladies met 
zonally for their Tuesday prayers. The spirit of 
prayer became stronger, with all ministries starting 
morning glory prayers, some daily and others on 

specified days. Some regions went further to set up 
prayer lines to attend to urgent prayer needs. 
 
Kingdom Wealth Creation 
Home Talents continued being worked miraculously 
as some businesses were not affected by the 
pandemic. Many have built houses and the majority 
saving money, surpassing the provincial target of 
£1m. 
 
Ministries  
Regardless of the lockdown, we saw the divine hand 
of God, with every ministry up and running, holding 
prayer sessions and retreats, services and 
seminars. They also participated in their ministerial 
national conferences. Some notable activities are as 
follows:- 
 
Child Evangelism  
They undoubtedly became the pace setters, with 
weekly services, two business seminars and a talent 
show themed “We are Gifted”, where all participants 
were appreciated with a token gift. The children 
were kept engaged during lockdown, learning new 
skills up until opening of schools. 
 
Youth  
They managed to put their structures in place in 
accordance with the youth calendar, began monthly 
provincial events and actively participated during the 
working of Missions. They have also begun Monday 
to Friday prayer sessions, morning and evening. 
 
Go Quickly & Tell 
They continued to conduct themselves as the 
backbone of prayer and a force in the working of 
Home Talents. Virtual High Teas were held, as well 
as fellowship meetings for Elders and Deacons 
respectively. 
 
Conclusion 
As a way of responding to those that have been 
affected by Covid-19, alms have been put in place 
to offer local support. We appreciate the setting up 
of a Provincial Task Force, to spear head the safe 
return to churches, working as a subcommittee of 
the National Task Force. 
 
 
 
  

PROVINCIAL SUMMARY REPORTS 
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NORTH LONDON PROVINCE 
 

 
 
Overseer’s Executive Summary 
We thank the God of our Father Professor Dr E H 
Guti for protecting His children during this 
unprecedented pandemic period. We truly have a 
great prophet who hears from God, have seen what 
was revealed to him come to pass.  
 
Many limitations are still being experienced through 
lockdown restrictions but still appreciate their 
objective of health and safety, to minimise the risk of 
infection. We are yet to meet physically for worship, 
continue with activities like street witnessing and 
thank the God of our father for preserving us from 
the pandemic, with prayer as our powerful pillar 
against the enemy. 
 
Soul winning through monthly crusades brought 9 
new believers to Christ; a call centre facility and 
prayer line is available to attend to prayer requests. 
Unfortunately, restrictions are still not allowing water 
baptism. 
 
Regardless of the many challenges, 2020 has been 
very productive, with more believers coming and 
tithes going up. We also worked in a phenomenal 
way towards the national excess of £1million raised 
by the nation to support Missions. We are continuing 
to push towards Kingdom Wealth Creation through 
working Home Talents.  
 
Communication & Strategies 
Due to lockdown restrictions, we kept in touch with 
believers using various virtual conferencing 
strategies for prayer, local and international 
services. NLP believers know that they are serving 
a true and faithful God (2 Thessalonians 3:3). Home 
Cell Groups meet midweek; Home Visitation to pray, 
meet the needs of believers and create opportunity 
to reach those living alone. 
 
 
 
 

Events 
Seminars & Conferences 
The year started with extraordinary ten days of 
prayer and fasting, then moved to virtual 
conferencing for conferences, seminars and 
ministerial gatherings after lockdown. Everyone 
greatly benefited from the various speakers from 
across the globe who delivered life changing 
teachings. 
 
Kingdom Wealth Creation 
Families are gathering a lot of money through 
working of Home Talents and the anointing of the 
season. Regions have created group links that 
include Buying & Selling, Properties, Farming, 
Health & Home Care, Stocks & Forex Markets. 
Experts are giving mentorship and guidance to 
those who register interest, so they can venture into 
different projects. Great testimonies are being 
shared and we believe more businesses shall be 
birthed in NLP.  
 
Ministries & Testimonies 
1. Ministries 
Regardless of the lockdown, all ministries 
demonstrated a hunger for staying connected, 
maximised efforts to receive online teachings and 
praying for the work of God. The youth are 
preaching on social media platforms and did some 
street witnessing when the lockdown rules were 
briefly eased. Young Generation & Child 
Evangelism faced enormous disruptions when they 
couldn’t go to school until their Pastors and Sunday 
School Teachers started various activities through 
zoom video conferencing. Many have grown 
spiritually, and confidence is soaring. We give glory 
to God for allowing them to stay focused and finding 
more joy through the International Children’s’ 
Sunday Services. 
 
2. Testimonies  
God created incredible opportunities for members 
during lockdown, including buying of properties, 
restoration of lost jobs and creation of new business 
projects.  The God of our father Ezekiel is awesome 
and so faithful, fulfilling His word and its purpose. 
Many saints were healed from Covid-19 and other 
illnesses, as shared through some of the 
testimonies received: - 
 
(a) Testimony 1 
A mother of two boys, nurse by profession and a 
believer at Luton Mega church contracted Covid-9 
early this year. It was difficult but I saw the hand of 
God through prayer support which sustained me 
even when I could feel my breath going. The God of 
our Father Ezekiel Guti is alive and faithful, is above 
every sickness or any mountain. My wonderful 
family of God were calling, daily checking on me, 
taking turns to cook and shopping for daily needs. l 
urge my fellow brethren to trust in this God of Father 
Ezekiel. Glory be to God!! 
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(b) Testimony 2  
My son lost his company manager job due to the 
pandemic. After being reminded of his situation on 
2ndJune, I was strongly persuaded to give to 
Missions and continued throughout the project 
period. My son called to say he has been reinstated 
on the same conditions, but his counterparts given 
a choice of junior positions with reduced income. I 
thank the leaders for encouragement on prayer and 
partnering with God. These Missions are not 
ordinary and such favour can only be the doing of 
the Lord. May He be glorified forever for His 
faithfulness. 
 
(c) Testimony 3 
In August I fell 3 times within my house, could not 
get up without help and was admitted to hospital 
after calling for an ambulance after the 3rd fall. 
Nothing wrong could be found, was overwhelmed 
with fear, lost all confidence to stand, walk or use my 
walking stick. I received full support from my church 
through prayers & visitations until discharge. I was 
house bound, in a wheelchair and using a taxi to and 
from church until virtual services started.  
 
After the physiotherapist visit on 19thSeptember and 
being asked to stand on my stick, I continued doing 
the same for some days, taking steps forward and 
back. I said, “Lord thank you for the 5 steps today 
and a thousand more tomorrow”!!  I then managed 
walk to the toilet, then to the kitchen which I had not 
seen for some time. I haven’t stopped walking since 
and it is the doing of the God of Ezekiel Guti. I was 
never without food during lockdown as the brethren 
took turns to minister. 
 
Conclusion 
We thank our father and mother Apostles Dr Ezekiel 
H Guti and Dr Eunor Guti for prayers and what their 
God is doing in our Province. We have remained 
standing despite the challenges caused by the 
Covid-19 pandemic, fulfilling scripture that says, 
“For we walk by faith and not by sight” (2 
Corinthians 5:7). 
 
We are so thankful to God for His love and kindness 
that has brought peace in our province and allowing 
His children to thrive financially through their 
faithfulness in tithes and offerings. We are confident 
that we will have a wonderful 2021, as we continue 
to operate under the anointing of the Apostles of 
Jesus Christ. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NORTH ENGLAND PROVINCE 

 
Executive Summary  
We began 2020 guided by the prophetic word that 
had been given to our father, to be strong as never 
before because the year was going to be different 
with things in the spiritual world that he could not 
explain. Leadership meetings just before and during 
lockdown continuously reviewed how best we would 
function as a province.  
 

As the pandemic ravaged the nation, believers who 
were affected were losing their jobs and livelihood 
which opened our eyes to pray without ceasing for a 
speedy reprieve and recovery. We have seen the 
mighty move of the hand of God, healing of the 
affected and some business endeavours 
miraculously continuing to flourish and expand.We 
continue to pray for God’s protection and 
sustenance as we enter the final quarter of the year. 
We believe the pandemic situation will undoubtedly 
abate in the months to come and enable us to return 
to our churches. The input and guidance of the 
National and Provincial Task Forces are much 
appreciated, through awareness training, 
interpretation and compliance to government 
guidelines.  
 

Programmes  
Easter (Resurrection Weekend) 
As the prophecy was gradually becoming clearer to 
all, the year was surely different and calling for a 
change in our prayer lives. This was the beginning 
of virtual services and prayers; we give glory to the 
God of our father who continued to revive and uplift 
the spirits of His people. 
 

Anniversary & Birthday Celebrations 
Despite the challenging times, we celebrated 
throughout the week in our Home Cell Churches, 
remembering where it had all begun, with History 
Book reading, prayer and testimonies.  
 

Prayer Conventions 
After June prayers, the Province joined the nation 
for a month of prayer and fasting in September, to 
wrestle against the kingdom of darkness and the 
“things in the spiritual world” that our father could not 
explain. Various prayer meetings were held through 
teleconferencing, the God of our father showing His 
faithfulness and the power of His might.  
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Testimonies 
One of the saints whose father was recovering well 
from Covid-19 appreciated prayers from the 
Pastors, leadership and the church at large when he 
was discharged from hospital.  
 
A front-line worker diagnosed with Covid-19 later 
tested negative after being prayed for and is 
eternally grateful to the true God of our father for her 
healing. 
 
Kingdom Wealth Creation 
People are working Home Talents, being 
encouraged through online teachings. Under the 
theme ‘Build Houses and Dwell in them’ (Jeremiah 
29 vs 5), encouragement came through Big Days, 
weekly services and testimonies of success. We 
thank the God of our father for such a wonderful 
vision that chases away poverty. 
 
Missions – The Unfinished Mandate 
Online teachings by national and international 
speakers, prayer and fasting, Big Days, all brought 
awareness and revival towards working Missions. 
So much excitement was shared amongst those 
who participated in this noble cause. 
 
Ministry Activities 
We thank God that ministries continued to have the 
zeal to meet for prayer, services and scheduled 
activities by Zoom platform. The following are some 
of the ministerial highlights: - 
 
Child Evangelism & Young Generation 
The interactive sessions were lively, gave our young 
ones opportunity to participate and have fun whilst 
learning, through bible quiz, games, question & 
answer sessions.  
 
Youth 
Powerful speakers who continued teaching the 
youth to fear and serve God. They also met for 
prayer retreat in October and give glory to God for a 
powerful vision that is doing a wonderful job 
equipping the youth to do things for God. Four had 
court weddings, until they have full ceremonies after 
lockdown.  
 
Girls 
The girls met with their National Director Overseer 
Cecelia Zezani in May for a Big Sunday. God is 
gracious, as they were taught and equipped through 
the Word, revived through worship.  
 
FAMB Conference 
Families came together in August for this 
empowering conference, with powerful teachings 
and interactive activities. They spent quality time 
together.  
 
 
 
 

Men of Integrity 
The men met in May for night prayer under the 
theme “Walking with God” (Genesis 5:24) and give 
glory to God for such a powerful event.  
 
Couples & Go Quickly Conferences 
These ministries held Zoom national conferences in 
August and October. These were conferences with 
a difference, with powerful international speakers 
Pastors P& F Arthurs from USA. Lives have been 
transformed, with renewal of vows for couples.  
 
Conclusion 
We thank God for allowing His work to continue in 
these trying times, preaching the gospel and having 
fellowships despite restrictions to meet physically. 
We continue to pray for every ministry to remain 
vibrant and that our province shall not lose any saint 
to the pandemic. The Task Force is guiding the 
province in risk assessing our places of worship, in 
preparation for return when it becomes safe to do 
so. The God of our father Ezekiel Guti has been 
gracious to North England Province. 
 
 
 
 
 

SCOTLAND PROVINCE 
 

 
 
Overseer’s Overview  
Grace, mercy and peace in the mighty name of our 
resurrected Saviour Jesus Christ. This is a snapshot 
report of activities, events, finances, developments, 
achievements, progress and challenges 
experienced by Scotland Province during 2020.  
 
Through all the unprecedented and turbulent times 
of the lockdown since April, we are humbled by the 
grace of the God of our father, that has been 
sufficient to see us through. The church family 
continues to be protected, ministerial activities being 
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held at every level, meeting virtually and 
consistently for prayers, bible study and services. 
We have been favoured to be taught the word by 
gifted and powerful speakers from across the globe 
over the last six months, which has greatly enriched 
our Province. 
 
We were highly privileged to partner with the great 
missionary of our time, to work joyfully and willingly 
together with our families in June and July, raising a 
lot of money to support the Missions mandate that 
our father was given by God. We are currently 
working Home Talents as families, being 
encouraged through Big Days and powerful 
teachings, to develop ourselves and accumulate 
wealth. People are working and we believe the God 
of our father will bless His children and allow them 
to prosper.  
Our financial performance has been exceptional as 
we are seeing a significant rise in our tithes, indeed 
a miracle the way people are tithing faithfully. Our 
savings continue to increase, and we are believing 
God for our very own Provincial Centre in His 
fullness of time. All things are possible with the God 
of our father and through prayer.  
 
Ministerial Highlights  
(a) Child Evangelism 
Since lockdown, the children’s classes have been 
organised by different age groups and occasionally 
combined. Through the year, their Big Sundays 
were graced by powerful local and international 
speakers, including Elder S. Shumirai, Pastor P. 
Burke and Pastor Mapunga. They were also able to 
join the global online services.   
 
(b) Youth  
The priority for every youth member is ensuring 
unity, fellowship and igniting a passion for Christ, to 
relentlessly pursue purpose in line with God’s will. 
The youth have experienced the great need for 
coming together during this difficult season and 
started “Connect Group” forum meetings two 
months ago, Tuesday evenings to pray, study the 
word and share on issues affecting them as today’s 
young people. The topical issues discussed include 
social media, fear & temptations, which has 
increased youth attendance, their engagement and 
they look forward to growing in numbers and in 
knowledge.  
 
They also hosted a couple of services which allowed 
them to showcase their amazing gifts, with plans of 
making this a monthly event as a way of ensuring 
staying rooted and participating in church functions. 
Many activities including quizzes and Q’nA’ 
sessions have brought a great sense of 
togetherness even outside church. Moving forward, 
they aim to meet regularly, cultivating each other’s 
gifts, thereby promoting growth and maturity in 
Christ, as the leaders of tomorrow. 
 
 

(c) Go Quickly & Tell  
The grace of God has been sufficient throughout the 
year, as women are rising and working Home 
Talents to improve the lives of their families. 
Through much encouragement from powerful 
speakers to the whole church, some have 
established businesses, others working towards 
buying houses and some building homes in Africa. 
Prayer remains their backbone as they meet 
virtually to intercede for the Apostles and Servant of 
God, our father and mother. They also participate, 
are being blessed through international prayer 
sessions and the national Mountain Movers prayer 
group. Many testimonies are being shared, how 
women are being transformed through being 
encouraged to work their character.   
 
 Activities Summary for 2020 

Event Dates Speaker (S) Level 

Big Saturday  June 
2020 

Bishop P. Soko  Provincial 
(Zoom) 

Big Tuesday   Aug 
2020 

Pastor P. Burke  Provincial 
(Zoom) 

Ladies 
Fellowship 

April 
2020 

Overseer B. 
Gombakomba 

Glasgow 
Region 
(Zoom) 

Ladies 
Fellowship  

May 
2020 

Elder R. 
Munyuni           
Elder B. Ncube                    
Elder M 
Mutebuka  

Edinburgh 
Region 
(Zoom) 

Ladies 
Fellowship  

May 
2020 

Elder T. 
Bashorun              
Mrs L. 
Rhapozzoh                          
Elder P. Masaka 

Glasgow 
Region 
(Zoom) 

High Tea  July 
2020 

Pastor E. 
Matsikanyere  

Glasgow 
Region 
(Zoom) 

Elders & 
Deacons  

Fellowship  

Aug 
2020 

Pastor N. Austin                
Pastor M. 
Gunha 

Provincial 
(Zoom) 

 
d) Men of Integrity 
Their Tuesday prayer meetings continued to be 
hugely successful, being taught on wide ranging 
topics that included Men’s Health; Parenting in 
2020; Business & Entrepreneurship; Personal 
Financial Planning; Sex, Marriage and Love, 
Grooming. This has allowed the ministry to continue 
growing from strength to strength. 
 
Conclusion 
As God remains gracious to His children, we trust 
that His face will continue to shine upon Scotland 
Province as not many saints were affected by Covid-
19 and no deaths recorded. We are forever grateful 
for your intercession and support. 
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SOUTH EAST ENGLAND PROVINCE 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Executive Summary 
Though 2020 had its own challenges, we have seen 
the hand of the God of our father and His 
faithfulness and give Him glory for preserving the 
saints from the Covid-19 pandemic. 
 
We held powerful virtual church services, leadership 
seminars, workers fellowships, Kingdom Wealth 
Creation seminars, services by ministries and 
Provincial Council meetings. Powerful teachers, 
local and from abroad, took the province to a higher 
level.  
 
We have witnessed opening of companies, buying 
of properties in the UK and abroad by the saints, 
through the school of talents. There has been a 
great revival in areas of working for God, in prayer 
and attendance of services. God used South East 
England Province mightily in raising money for 
Missions; have seen significant increase in number 
of tithers, making it possible to both meet all our 
financial obligations and to save money.  
 
We are looking forward to going back to physical 
gatherings, to be able to baptize new believers in 
water, as the National and Provincial Task Forces 
offer relevant guidance in interpretating government 
guidelines, risk assessment and compliance. 
 
Programmes 
Deliverance Sessions continue to take place 
despite the lockdown and the absence of 
opportunity to share testimonies of what the Lord is 
doing. The multiple sessions of the June prayer 
conventions were conducted virtually and those with 
prayer requests ministered to on a one to one basis. 
 
Christian Business Fellowship (CBF) is growing 
from strength to strength and more people engaging 
in entrepreneurship, including the youth. During 
business seminars, the young entrepreneurs 
encourage others to venture into business. South 
Bank Region were privileged to receive teachings 
from international speakers, ‘Discipleship’ by 
Bishop Rupapa and ‘Salvation’ by 
Dr D Simango. 
 
 

Activities 
Missions – We give praise to the God of our father 
as we saw His hand in the working of Missions in  
June and July. It was a remarkable performance of 
“firsts” over the whole nation, from South Bank 
Region, our Pastors C & M Mhlanga then the 
Province. Even though we were in a pandemic, 
people gave whole heartedly to their God and South 
Bank Region even superseded their target. Special  
thanks go to the Pastoral Board, who prayed with us 
at every level and arranged international speakers 
to charge us with inspiring teachings. 
 
Kingdom Wealth Creation - We continued to be 
encouraged to work Home Talents and to apply the 
same zeal as when we were working Missions. We 
held regional corporate prayers and as a province. 
 
Home Bible Study Groups - The 50 groups 
remained active though with a negative impact from 
the lockdown. We glorify God for diligence and 
ability to meet online. 
 
Conferences were held by every Region during the 
year, power packed, practical and life changing. 
After the Ten Days of Prayer and Fasting in January, 
every conference and convention then went virtual 
including Easter and June Prayer. Girls & Boys, 
Youth, Ladies and Couples, who also participated 
and benefited from the national online fellowship 
conferences.  
 
Ministries 
It is remarkable that despite the lockdown and its 
challenges, every ministry managed to divert    
scheduled activities to online platforms. Some 
notable activities are highlighted as follows: -   
 
Child Evangelism & Young Generation teachers 
continued facilitating children’s church as per the 
vision given to the Servant and Apostle E H Guti. 
Virtual local services graduated to joining the 
international services through YouTube/Facebook, 
a channel which the Superintendents had already 
started using.  
 
Go Quickly & Tell held Big Chinas and High Teas 
across the province, over and above the female 
Elders and Deacons seminars with international 
speakers. They joined in the 2 international Big 
Tuesdays addressed by our mother apostle Dr 
Eunor Guti and South Bank have started home 
makers services, sharing teachings that include 
families, children, working and running businesses. 
 
Men of Integrity birthed a male Elders and Pastors 
midnight prayer group from Monday to Thursday in 
South Bank Region, extended to all the men on 
Fridays. Willing hearts and a hunger to earnestly 
fellowship with God are the main motivation. Like 
other ministries, they were also ministered to by 
international speakers in their conferences across 
the province. 
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Single Women are a ministry of vibrant members 
who meet regularly to fellowship and pray; they 
worked Missions in March. Through the Overseer’s 
office, they had a well-attended interactive meeting 
with Pastor C Zezani, a keep fit event where they 
received teachings from a professional coach on 
how to exercise and many more empowering 
speakers. 
 
Couples Fellowship has solidified over the years 
as a powerful pillar of soul winning to non FIFM 
members. Beyond local, regional and provincial 
events, they participated at the most recent National 
Couples Conference themed “Lets Chat Love” held 
in August. 
General Remarks & 2021 Projections 
We look forward to having every ministry exceling in 
their vision and projects, including Families Builder 
Ministry (FAMB) who aim to go beyond family fun 
days but to organise fellowship activities at local 
assemblies that will nurture family cohesion and 
growth.  
 
Some of our projections are: - 

• Embarking on reaching out to the indigenous 
people and other nationalities. 

• Soul winning by all age groups 

• Engaging all ministries and groups in prayer 
retreats 

• Maintain our membership strength 

• To teach the word as written in the bible 
scriptures with the additional support from the 
books of the Servant and Apostle of God. 

 
We thank our father, the Apostle & Servant of God 
Dr EH Guti for his prayers and for giving us 
shepherds with a burden of seeing us maturing in 
the things of God.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

CHILD EVANGELISM MINISTRY 
 

 
 
Introduction 
The head is National Director Pastor Phyllis Burke, 
assisted by Pastor Kay Chibwana. Elder Shepherd 
Shumirai is the current Chairman, working with 
vibrant pastors, teachers and friends of the Ministry.  
 
Because of the global pandemic, 2020 has been a 
challenging year all round, yet managed to switch to 
online activities and children’s church’, with children 
and their teachers always glued to their gadgets.  
We saw the hand of God as interactive meetings 
and sharing of the most wonderful experiences were 
facilitated through these gadgets. Our extensive 
report intends to allow the readers to capture and 
share with us, the progress we made and the 
excitement about the growth of our ministry. 
 
Our presentation is of a successful and fruitful 
engaging year, through the support of parents, 
guardians, teachers and leaders. It starts with the 
national overview, then the more detailed provincial 
events and plans.  
 
National Overview 
2020 has been tremendous by way of commitment 
from teachers and parents despite being restricted 
from meeting physically because of lockdown. The 
board did not stop hosting a national seminar in 
May, with the International Director Pastor Dope as 
speaker, as well as a successful meeting in August 
to plan children’s learning activities. It is exciting to 
note that Provinces and regions are also planning 
Christmas parties for the children.  
 
The teachers and parent sessions were held in May 
during a week of prayer and fasting. They were well 
attended and filled all the available spaces on the 

MINISTERIAL AND DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS 
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platform. The high-powered sessions majored on 
training up a child and how to conduct children’s 
church effectively, attended by children from as far 
as Dubai, South Africa, Mozambique and 
Zimbabwe. The teachings invited positive 
comments from parents and the critical areas 
covered include: -  
 
1. Training up a child in the way they should go 
(Proverbs 22 vs 6). 
For behavioural change and to prepare them for a 
responsible future 
Ushering them into a guided system, using child 
centred approaches 
2. How to communicate effectively with children, the 
different methods and their values. 
3. How to avoid the common mistakes we make 
when communicating with children. 
4. The importance of games and music as part of 
lesson development. 
5. The importance of applying correct teacher/child 
ratios and rota systems for teachers. 
6. Identifying child needs and communicating 
effectively with parents. 
 
These teachings emphasise that “ANYTHING FOR 
THE CHILDREN WITHOUT THE CHILDREN IS 
NOT FOR THE CHILDREN”.  As such, every 
province, region and assembly have launched their 
weekly children’s church and establishment of a 
Kingdom Music & Dance (KMD) structure, with Elder 
Obert Mazivisa as national leader. Their future plans 
include learning from the Zimbabwe KMD 
experience, to encourage children to compose 
songs, enter song writing competitions and running 
of workshops. 
 
Provincial Activities 
Notably, every province has a provincial board in 
place to guide the ministry, but teacher availability is 
varied for different reasons, e.g. work commitments. 
Most regions are holding as many services as 
possible for the respective groups, inviting different 
speakers and encouraging the children to watch the 
online international services from when they started.  
 
Over and above bible study classes, memory verses 
and watching video clips, children are benefiting 
from various interactive activities that keep them 
engaged. CE classes cover wide ranging topics that 
have brought tremendous growth in the knowledge 
of the word and have equipped the children to lead 
services extremely well.  
 
Some activity highlights that the children are 
enjoying including cooking & baking, dancing & 
drama, exercise routines, indoor games, bible 
quizzes and playing musical instruments. Greater 
Midlands showcased a talent show, with every 
participant being appreciated with a reward by a 
donor parent and two Business Seminars were 
addressed by young businesspersons from Youth 
Ministry. South East England encourage children to 

share their future professional aspirations and call 
them by those titles to keep them motivated e.g. 
Evangelist, Doctor, Biologist, Prime Minister to 
name but a few. They also had a session on child 
inventors, and some have already started working 
on different projects. 
 
Kingdom Music & Dance (KMD) is surely catching 
on and every province has positively responded to 
the call of electing a leader. North London managed 
to hold a KMD launch and invited Pastor Madhoyo. 
The nation held their first meeting on 6th December 
and agreed on a plan of action, which encourages 
coordination (learning the same song across the 
nation), without restricting the children (options to do 
a lot of dances). Only meaningful songs with the 
word of God will be used, children encouraged to 
compose songs and enter song writing 
competitions. 
 
Closing Remarks 
The diligence of the teachers who faithfully availed 
themselves is producing great work at every level, 
with the support of parents and guardians as well. 
We saw successful and fruitful engagement with 
every activity, with a lot of the children learning new 
skills during the lockdown. 
We thank God for all the local speakers and our 
Pastorate who tirelessly support, guide and pray for 
us. 
We thank God for His faithfulness, sufficient grace 
upon our ministry and look forward to continuing to 
doing greater exploits in 2021. 
 
 
 

G I R L S   M I N I S T R Y 
 

 
 
We are so thankful to God for the substantial growth 
we experienced in 2020. Our National Girls Director, 
the Pastorate, Advisors and girls’ leadership worked 
tirelessly to plan programmes and ensure the 
functioning of ministry. 
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We met consistently for services as planned and 
received teachings ranging from Etiquette, Prayer, 
Girl Talk, Business and Relationships. The inability 
to meet physically from lockdown allowed us to 
adapt and be creative. We appreciate our Girls 
Media Department, who have been strategic and 
innovative in promoting virtual methods that 
attracted attendance and engagement. Numbers 
increased with every virtual event as an influx of girls 
from other nations were logging in. Testimonies 
being received are proof that God is truly 
transforming lives and are thankful to the God of our 
father for His faithfulness. 
 
Under the theme "power of a praying girl", 
powerful speakers encouraged us on prayer in June 
and a closing word by Dr La-Verne Simukai 
empowered the girl child to rise and serve God 
wholeheartedly. 
 
We had our first ever virtual Girls Leadership 
Seminar in August with our International Girls 
Director, Pastor Ruth Basa, who taught on good 
leadership, how to connect with ministry through 
praying for our mother and father. The turn out from 
the Girls Leaders, Advisors and Pastors was good; 
unity and prayer are the building blocks for our 
strength. 
 
We recently had a power-packed conference 
themed “Daughters of the Vision: Empowering & 
Equipping A Girl Child”, inspired by the book “Girls 
Fellowship” by our father, Archbishop Prof. E.H Guti. 
Though intended for the UK, we had delegates from 
Cyprus, Zimbabwe, New Zealand Africa, Botswana, 
Russia, Dubai, Oman and Australia, which made it 
an international e-conference. A great sense of 
excitement characterised this historical event which 
was surrounded by a great cloud of witnesses, from 
Bishops to Pastors. It was a different platform as we 
experienced the power and presence of God 
regardless of the Covid-19 global pandemic. We 
were honoured to have Pastor Joylyn Rusere as 
conference speaker and witnessed the faithfulness 
of the God of our father. 
 
As these phenomenal activities bring us to the end 
of the year, we continue to believe that God is taking 
our ministry and individual lives to another level.  We 
greatly appreciate the unparalleled support received 
from our National Girls Director, Pastor Cecilia 
Zezani, our Pastors, Advisors and parents. We ask 
you for continued prayers as many girl children are 
still desiring God to grant them their many desires 
for His glory. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Y O U T H   M I N I S T R Y 

 
 
We are so grateful to God for substantial growth in 
youth statistics, attendance and participation at all 
events in 2020. With everything different this year, 
we still experienced God’s move in a new and 
refreshing way. The zeal, unity and growth currently 
taking place is the doing of the Lord and is 
marvellous in our eyes. We thank our father, the 
Apostle and Servant of God, Dr EH Guti for his 
guidance and prayers for our ministry. We also 
thank God for the shepherds He gave to watch over 
us, the National Youth Directors Pastors Cals & Ska 
Manyati who are dedicated to this great work.  
 
At every administrative level, the Advisors work 
alongside our Directors and Youth Pastors, 
committed in supporting every youth event operated 
under the theme of the year “the love of God through 
fellowship, breaking of bread and in prayers”. 
The message declared through the 10 days letter by 
our father, that “this year was different, and we need 
to be strong as never before”, came to pass as the 
nation came under lockdown from the pandemic. 
Creative ways of engagement had to be found and 
our Media Department started streaming live 
services through our social media handles. People 
from outside of ministry also joined and gave their 
lives to Christ, bringing revival and increased youth 
participation in serving God. 
 
Resurrection Sunday Service 
Resurrection Sunday was a major highlight for the 
year. We organised and live streamed a national 
service with Bishop Dr JDK Samasuwo as the 
speaker and partaking of Holy Communion in the 
comfort of our homes. People are still testifying 
about this life changing service.  
 
International Youth E-Service 
In May, we were privileged to host the first ever 
international youth service streamed on our national 
Facebook page. Such international coordination did 
not only result in the successful service but a 
masterpiece of a production, a continued 
celebration of the 60th Diamond Jubilee milestone 
achievement for the ministry, as well as appreciating 
the faithfulness of our father to the call on his life. 



 pg. 15 

National Youth E-Conference 
Our first ever national life transforming virtual 
conference was held in August, well attended by 
both local and international delegates. We were 
honoured to have international speakers Pastor 
Michael Dooley and Pastor Alisha Schoen. Their 
teachings centred around the Kingdom of God, 
Entrepreneurship & Business, Relationships and 
Relationship with God; positive feedback and 
testimonies being received. 
 
National Leadership Training Seminars 
In July, we had sessions dedicated to empowering 
every youth leader at every level. International 
speakers, local Advisors and former youth members 
now in leadership were part of these boot camp 
sessions. Beyond equipping the leaders and 
preparing them for the work, the delegates were 
also taught church doctrine and encouraged to 
invest in the books written by our father. Such 
training resulted in more committed youth leaders.  
 
Missions: The Unfinished Mandate 
The youth engaged in a tremendous way, standing 
with our father in working Missions, holding weekly 
services and sharing encouraging testimonies. 
Through this “giving pillar”, we saw the hand of God 
as the youth gave cheerfully unto their God and 
contributed to the phenomenal amount raised as a 
nation. 
 
Kingdom Wealth Creation 
There’s a rise in young entrepreneurs and 
businesspeople through this School of Talents and 
those who fully engaged understood how working 
talents is a tool for self-development. All Youth 
Pastors and Advisors are working tirelessly to 
ensure that the youth grasp this philosophy, to 
discover their God-given gifts/talents that open 
doors for extra flow of income. To God be the glory. 
 
Weddings 
Despite the lockdown restrictions, 2020 was a year 
for marriages and experienced an overflow of 
graduates to the couple’s ministry. God has been 
faithful in hearing our prayers and fulfilling the 
desires of the youths in that regard. We continue to 
be encouraged by our leaders to cling unto the God 
of our father, to fear God and walk upright. We 
continue believing for more Godly marriages and 
weddings. 
 
Closing Remarks & Prayer Requests 
Our achievements in this challenging year were 
made possible through support received from our 
leaders and most importantly our parents. We 
appreciate this support and request for continued 
prayers, for us grow holistically to be a people that 
fear the Lord and fully committed to the things of 
God. We very much desire to enjoy the best 
relationships with our parents, families, leaders and 
peers. 
 

GO QUICKLY & TELL REPORT 

 
1. Introduction 
The National Go Quickly and Tell ministry 
restructured in November 2019 is chaired by 
Archbishop Dr Eunor Guti, assisted by Bishop 
Greater Chikwawawa, Pastor Rumbidzai 
Makuwere, Pastor Cecilia Zezani and a dynamic 
team of all lady Overseers. There is also a Steering 
Committee chaired by Pastor Evelyn Mujuruki which 
includes provincial representatives. This structure is 
then replicated at every level from Province to 
Assembly. 
 

The UK Church encountered various and mixed life 
experiences like sickness, backslidings, 
prayerfulness, miracle healing, financial gains and 
losses. This was as had been prophesied by the 
Servant & Apostle of God Dr EH Guti, that “The 
year 2020 is different from all other years. We 
need to be strong as never before; because 
there are things in the spiritual world that I 
cannot be able to explain.  Except that I 
encourage everyone to make sure that your 
relationship with God is right……”.   
 

We continued to press forward in small groups, then 
went virtual after lockdown. Many good things are 
happening, the ministry becoming stronger as some 
saints who had backslidden are growing through the 
spirit of prayer. The Mountain Movers forum is one 
such powerful national prayer group, headed by 
Bishop Greater Chikwawawa, who meet every 
Saturday night to pray for the Servant & Apostles of 
God, Dr EH Guti and Dr E Guti, and the work at 
large. 
 

2. Activities Female Pastors’ Ten Days Prayer & 
Fasting Retreat (with Archbishop Dr. Eunor Guti) 
This was a Female Pastors International Prayer and 
Fasting Retreat, camped together with our mother 
Apostle Dr Eunor Guti from 31st December to 11th 
January at Ezekiel Guti Convention Centre. The 
total of 60 pastors in attendance included 20 
international delegates; the final day of prayer and 
cleansing included male pastors in breaking of 
bread and fellowship. This was indeed by divine 
appointment to cover the nation as the pandemic 
was approaching.  



 pg. 16 

Prayer Meetings 
Ladies continued to meet virtually for prayer and the 
spirit of prayer never dampened by the pandemic. 
Teachings during lockdown by various international 
speakers including our mother Apostle Dr Eunor 
Guti were both inspirational and life changing. Up to 
200-member strong “Mountain Movers” group meet 
weekly without fail to pray and also receive 
teachings. The ladies also engaged in the 21 days 
of prayer and fasting sessions after which many 
miracles are being testified. 
 
Thursday Meetings (China) 
These teachings continued virtually at all levels 
through seminars, conferences, High Teas, as well 
as sharing of testimonies. The light of God is being 
seen amongst the UK women in the UK and new 
ladies coming to Christ and becoming members 
through these powerful teachings on prayer, 
developing good relations and home practices. 
 
3. Kingdom Wealth Creation  
Virtual seminars have been ongoing during 
lockdown, with remarkable attendance. The results 
are outstanding, family businesses being started 
including individual ventures by some women. 
 
4. Kingdom Women Empowerment to Prosperity 
Conference 
The 2-day conference in October 2020 had a 
markable 484 – 687 gadgets logged in on Zoom. 
Delegates received a spiritual treat from every 
speaker, viz DP D Mushore (The Total Woman); 
Pastor R Makuwere (Personal Development and 
Prospering Through Prayer); Bishop Prisca Soko 
(Women Empowerment); Elder Jane Josi (Home 
Talents); Elder S Chinobva (Inheritance & Will 
Writing) and Elder P Maminingu (Prospering in 
Business).It was a conference the UK had never 
experienced before, inspiring, insightful, with great 
deliverance and the total woman with her needs 
being met. The following are some of the highlights 
from the sessions that leaned heavily on testimonial 
teaching: - 
 
Being prayerful and fearing God as a true disciple of 
Jesus Christ, practicing righteousness as a 
complete woman. How respect brings godliness; 
knowing how to deal with offenses; self-deliverance 
and emotional healing. 
 
Spending time with God in His secret place to tap 
into the vision of self-development, making 
conscious decisions on achieving what God has 
purposed. 
 
The link between empowerment and life experience 
of adversity and limitation; the power of self-identity 
against despondency and poverty. Understanding 
today’s life, the different marriages under law and 
their legal implications on family especially after life. 
The power of obedience to the vision of working 

Home Talents in wealth creation. How giving and 
partnering with God attracts the blessing of the Lord. 
 
For the Saturday closing session, we were graced 
by the presence of our mother, Apostle Dr E Guti 
and Dr La-Verne Simukai. Their powerful teachings 
reminded us of being the backbone and how we can 
make a difference if we function as such. Raising a 
godly generation requires us to deal with all ungodly 
influence and our character. Positive influence from 
older women will bring restoration in the body of 
Christ. Great deliverance took place amongst the 
delegates who were logged in from all over the 
world. This insightful conference was indeed a great 
and remarkable experience, closed and blessed by 
our father, Archbishop Dr Ezekiel H Guti. 
 
5. Strengths  
There is a sudden hunger and thirst for prayer and 
the Word of God. The Love of God is also being 
demonstrated through kindness, compassion and 
care for one another, through virtual fellowships and 
food banks. Through Virtual Meetings, 2-3 women 
are joining the services, and committing to the 
meetings on Zoom saying, “We didn’t know there 
was something like this happening around!” 
Women as individuals are engaging into viable 
businesses. 
 
6. Prayer Requests 
The believer to understand the importance of 
praying for the Servants and apostles of God Drs 
Ezekiel & Eunor Guti and the work of the Ministry. 
 
The believers in the UK to be preserved and 
protected from the Pandemic; the front-liners and 
Carers who are the majority of our saints.   
 
The believer to understand the importance of Soul 
winning and Deborah’s’ husbands to come to 
Church and families to grow together. 
 
Pray for the children in FIFM-UK to know their true 
identity and for the fear of God to prevail, even 
though they are in the first world. 
 
The spirit of Unity amongst leaders and saints to 
evolve, causing oneness, sweet fellowship and the 
awesome presence of God amongst the brethren, 
as shown to the Servant and Apostle of God through 
the Theme for 2020. 
 
7. Closing Remarks 
Thank you for praying for United Kingdom and 
remembering it even in this period of Covid-19 and 
the miracles of healing amongst the saints.  We also 
thank God for Business Empowerment that has 
caused so many people to prosper in different ways 
to the glory of God; and partnering with the Servant 
and Apostles of God in the vision of Soul Winning. 
Above all, praise and honour be to the God our 
Father, Ezekiel Guti who has brought us this far and 
can only exclaim, “Jehovah Ebenezer” 
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SINGLE LADIES 

 
Introduction 
We thank God for sustaining the ministry especially 
in this challenging pandemic year and allowing us to 
transition from physical meetings to online 
platforms. God remembered us as we committed to 
daily intercession for the Servant and Apostles of 
God and the work in general. Over first 7 days of 
each month dedicated to fasting and praying, the 
same happened in January and March. We are 
humbled by this powerful vision, imparted upon our 
father the Apostle and Servant of God. 
 
We extend our sincere gratitude to our National 
Administrator and Bishops for the commendable 
moral and spiritual support received in the year. It is 
unfortunate that the Covid-19 lockdown put on hold 
the scheduled physical meetings to provinces and 
regions by our Ministry Pastor A Mandonga to 
encourage, teach and counsel. By God’s grace, 
Regions and Provinces were able to transition to 
online platforms for virtual prayers, services and 
seminars  
 
We appreciate our National Umbrellas and their 
team of umbrellas, the outgoing National Chairlady 
T Makore for their great support and dedication to 
ministry. We welcome the incoming National Board 
which was elected into office in February, under the 
leadership of Elder J Mtunzi.  
 
National Activities 
We had a successful leadership seminar and 
fellowship in February 2020, where board members 
were empowered through the insightful teachings 
from various speakers. 
 
The God of our father was gracious to us, allowed 
us to host a 2-day national virtual conference in 
October, which was one of its own kind. We received 
powerful and life changing teachings from our 
International Director C Mhlandhla, Bishop G 
Mutingwa and Bishop S Msiza. We were taught what 
makes the ministry grow with emphasis on peace, 
unity and commitment; were reminded of the vision 
of the ministry, encouraged to rely on God and never 
look down on ourselves.  
 

We also witnessed children who had run away being 
reconciled with their parents through prayer and 
counselling. 
 
Provincial Programmes 
Conferences & Seminars 
These were held in various provinces, where vibrant 
single women, eager to learn and grow in Christ 
were taught. The ministry received support from the 
Overseers, who joined other speakers to give 
teachings on varying topics including power of 
intercession, dating, grooming and gardening. 
 
 
Get Together Fellowships 
NEP had a fun filled day out, to socialise, fellowship 
and relax at a Spa Leisure Centre. This was 
concluded by breaking bread together at a 
restaurant. Such activities are highly recommended 
for every province as they bring unity. 
 
Missions 
The National Board encouraged working of Missions 
during April and May, which was successful.  We 
saw the hand of God as the ladies worked with a 
willing heart, standing with our father in advancing 
the gospel of Jesus Christ. We were highly favored 
of God to hear a word of the season from Overseer 
Catherine Marurama at the closing celebrations. 
 
Kingdom Wealth Creation  
Through increased understanding of Home Talents 
as an act of obedience unto God, many single ladies 
have grasped the vision, are buying houses and 
opening businesses. 
 
Thanksgiving National Big Sunday 
The final Big Sunday was held on 29th November 
2020. Our Executive National Umbrellas shared 
insightful teachings around God’s instruction 
concerning raising children with wisdom. Emphasis 
was on good communication, befriending them in 
love and appreciating them as individuals, as 
opposed to dwelling in the past.  
 
The ladies were encouraged about the importance 
of being open, engaging with their relatives and 
allowing relationships to be healed through 
forgiveness. 
 
The powerful message touched many hearts, 
leading the ladies to cry to God for forgiveness and 
reconciliation with their children. Ending the year on 
such a high note could only be the doing of the Lord. 
 
Conclusion 
There is still room for growth, having more local 
fellowship meetings that will win ladies from other 
ethnic backgrounds. We thank the God of our father 
for taking us this far and look forward to finding 
better methods of fund raising, in order to respond 
effectively to the dynamic needs of the ministry. 
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GRACIOUS WOMEN FELLOWSHIP 
INTERNATIONAL 

UK CHAPTER REPORT 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Introduction 
The first Gracious Women Fellowship (GWF) was 
formed in the UK in 1985 to equip women with 
navigation life skills. Its founders and presidents are 
Apostles Dr Ezekiel H & Dr Eunor Guti. The 
ministry’s operations were not consistent hence the 
resumption of efforts to resuscitate it. The GWF 
Core Group Meeting held on 11 July 2020, set the 
ball rolling.  
 
UK Core Group Meeting - 11 July 2020 
Members met to pray for a strong GWF foundation 
including the board, so that it plays a meaningful role 
in transforming lives; to also, pray for families and 
the registration of GWF to operate as a charity 
organisation. The bigger picture is to empower all 
women, in-line with the ministry’s spirit, which is to 
minister to every woman at her unique point of need. 
The formation of groups then becomes the most 
relevant and appropriate approach in preparation for 
the coming official launch. 
 
 
Groups Formation, Names and Objectives 
Single Women - 2 Groups 
Gracious Pearls (Mature Girls) 
Women above the age of 25, not yet married, with 
no children and gone above the youth stage, have 

been meeting weekly to learn the essence of being 
gracious girls. 
 
b) Gracious Ms Single (Rubies) 
Previously married, widowed or divorced and are 
meeting monthly specifically to pray. 
 
Married Women - 2 Groups 
Gracious Young Wives (Sapphires)  
Women who have been in marriage for 0-20 years 
meet weekly. 
 
b) Gracious Gems Women who have been married 
for 21+ years are meeting alternate Thursdays. 
 
 Future Plans 
We plan to groom board members and to continue 
praying for the registration of the ministry as a 
charity organisation. We prayerfully look forward to 
the official launch with Husbands Agape.  
 
 
Conclusion 
It is befitting to thank the Founder and President, 
Apostles Dr Ezekiel H Guti and Dr Eunor Guti, for 
blessing our nation and allowing Gracious Women 
Fellowship and the Husbands Agape Fellowship to 
operate in the UK. Members are already 
experiencing the fruits of this unique ministry, are 
confident that prayer and love will make a way for all 
groups to be established and continue to grow.  
 
Our sincere gratitude goes to our International 
Director Pastor Idah Chikono and her team, for 
encouraging and directing us. Our strength is in 
taking up this mandate as a team and thank you for 
committing to the growth of this much needed 
ministry. According to Ezekiel 37:5 “Surely I cause 
breath to enter into every family and they live”, thus 
says the Lord God to the GWF & HUSBANDS 
AGAPE. We look forward to families being restored 
and strengthened in every area.  
 
 
 
  



 pg. 19 

UNITED KINGDOM MULTINATION FOR CHRIST 
COLLEGE (UKMFCC) 

 

 
 
Once again, we thank the God of our father, 
Professor Dr Ezekiel H Guti for showing Himself 
mightily in this challenging but unique year. We saw 
a rise in the performance of Bible school through 
utilisation of technology and the School recorded its 
highest attendance in a progressive momentum 
throughout the pandemic period. Indeed, we serve 
a living God, Hallelujah to the King of Kings!! 
 
From year start, lessons have been well covered to 
optimal standard, a well attained improvement in UK 
and Europe. We currently have two online classes 
running concurrently, graduating and beginners’ 
classes. Students from different centres testify a 
high standard of delivery of lectures, an endeavour 
we wish to accelerate.  
 
Graduation 
There was no graduation due to current prevailing 
circumstances and preparations for 2021 are still in 
place for the 2020 & 2021 classes, despite the 
uncertainties. 
  
Student Assessments 
Online trial assessments have been put forward to 
January 2021, while we familiarise with the systems. 
 
Curriculum 
The school has grown from strength to strength, the 
curriculum developed to having high quality 
teachers who deliver quality teachings and produce 
high quality students with sound doctrine of Jesus 
Christ. UK aims to set a standard that will be 
emulated worldwide, continue being proactive and 
innovative. We are happy to announce that we now 
have a newly elected Council. 
 

 
 
UKMFCC Curriculum 1st and 2nd Year Modules 

Ist  Year 2nd Year Electives 
1. Talking with 
God  
2. Bible 
Synthesis I, II, & 
III 
3. 
Pneumatology  
4. Soteriology 
5. Doctrinal 
Foundation 
6. Deliverance 
7. Character of 
God 
8. Counselling  
9. Effective 
Preaching 
(Homiletics) 
10. Rules & 
Policy 
(Introduction to 
Laws of 
Leadership) 

11. Life and 
Teachings of 
Christ 
12. Kingdom 
of God 
13. Child 
Evangelism 
14. Church 
History 

1. Marriage and 
Family 
2. Principles of 
Faith 
3. Principles of 
Giving 
4. Tabernacle 
5. Missions 
6. Book of 
Romans 
 

 
Statistics (Leadership Structure) 
We want to take this opportunity to appreciate the 
out-going Chair, Elder Benjamin Chingwara, value 
his 16 years tenure where he has been immensely 
involved in the UKMFCC establishment and 
progression of the school to where it is today. We 
witnessed his passion and dedication to the school 
and aim to emulate him.  
 
The newly elected National School Council is as 
follows:- 
 

Director Rev Tendai 
Bvunzawabaya 

Chairperson Elder Maxwell Marimba 

Vice Chair Elder Patience Sithole 

Secretary Elder Mavis Taruwinga 

Vice Secretary Elder Walker Chikeya  

School Admin Elder Ronald Bevan 

COUNCILLORS  

Greater Midlands Elder Godfrey Mutara  

Scotland Elder Kang’ethe 

North England Elder Stephen 
Tapfumaneyi 
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School Centres & Teaching Staff 
Our total student enrolment of 132 is spread out in 
15 centres, which cover the whole nation and happy 
to report the extension to Republic of Ireland, 
mainland Europe (Switzerland, Germany, France). 
The teaching staff is made up of a team of 20 
Pastors, 17 Elders and 4 Deacons. 
Note: Currently we have two online classes that 
are running concurrently, graduating class and 
beginners’ class. 
 
Finance  
The school is financed solely from student tuition 
fees, structured as follows: - 
Registration fee   £   50.00 
Course fees   £ 320.00 
Total course fees   £ 370.00 
 
Note: School fees has not been revised since the 
inception of UKMFCC for easy accessibility and 
to accommodate all, without costs being a 
hinderance. 
Overall Summary Report 
1. Aug 2019 – October 2020  
We witnessed a dynamic shift which embraces 
diversity and encourages the youth to participate, 
hence the rise in the number of youth registrations 
in the year. The online classes are one of the 
achievements that brought us together with 
mainland Europe (including the Schengen Region), 
Belfast & Republic of Ireland. We recorder the 
highest attendance ever, with students receiving 
teachings in the comfort of their homes without 
distance as a barrier. 
 
 
2. Dr Mbisa’s Visit 
We were privileged to host the International Co-
ordinator for AMFCC Part-time Bible School 
programme in April 2020; both teachers and 
students gained tremendously from his profound 
teachings and wisdom. His passion for the School 
was witnessed across the nation. 
 
3. Challenges 
Impact of Covid-19 
The graduation class of 2020 meant to have taken 
place during the 14th Europe Deeper Life was 
affected. 
Face-to-face interaction with students has been 
compromised. 
 
However, on a positive note, Schengen Region 
has been incorporated via online classes. Students 
have also been allowed flexibility to learn from 
wherever they are, regardless of differences in 
working patterns.  
 
4. Director’s Desk 
We thank the God of our father Apostle Dr Ezekiel 
H Guti for yet another successful academic year. We 
had the Training of Teachers in April and a training 
session for all Home Cell Group and Sunday Adult 

Bible Study teachers in our nations. This was well 
received by all the provinces, regions and 
assemblies; participants have demanded more of 
such trainings to equip and ground the teachers with 
church doctrine and the Word of God. The School is 
considering having such trainings every year.  
 
The School continues to upgrade itself, to remain 
relevant to the emerging generation as it discharges 
its training mandate to leaders and believers for 
ministry and service.  
 
We thank God for the School Councillors who 
continue to volunteer and dedicate their time to the 
successful running of the School. We thank our 
father the President and Founder of the college, for 
his prayers as the bible school extends its presence 
into mainland Europe. 
 
Conclusion 
Despite facing global uncertainty, the school 
continues to move. We have advanced to meet 
student needs and the Church at large through 
delivery of lectures on Microsoft-Teams and Google 
Meet. As expectations increase, this has been 
learning ground for both the school and the church, 
how to rise above the challenges of today’s world, 
seeing positivity instead of negativity to be able to 
excel. To God be the glory!! 
 
 
 
 

EGEA UK GOSPEL TEAM 
 

 
Introduction  
Praise be unto the God of our father Apostle E.H 
Guti who paved a way for the continued preaching 
of the gospel of Jesus Christ during these 
unprecedented times and the witnessing of a 
breakthrough by the team. The following is a 
summary report covering the activities that have 
transpired so far, under the great mandate of “Go 
ye therefore....” (Matthew 28:19).  
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Activities  
1. Meetings & Prayers: The team held several 
meetings to plan the Evangelistic Crusades and 
meet every Wednesday for online prayer, from 
10pm-10:30pm. The members are always 
encouraged to spend more time seeking the face 
of God, then having a week of prayer and fasting 
preceding every crusade night. 
 
2. Crusades: Online crusades have been 
scheduled to take place monthly and 3 held so far.  
so far since it started 3 has been done, 2 were 
done on zoom only and the 3rd one was on both 
face book and YouTube. At most, about 140 
gargets connected, which is extremely encouraging 
and the team working hard towards improving the 
technical area to avoid further challenges with 
streaming. We believe God will allow us to reach 
out to many with the good news of the true gospel 
of Jesus Christ, followed by signs and wonders. 
The team is working on an effective way of 
obtaining feedback that will improve overall 
operations.  
 
3. Testimonies (a few): - 
People with various needs are being prayed for 
and receiving their breakthroughs.  
A certain woman with a breast lump was prayed for 
and it disappeared.  
A certain individual suffering from stomach pains 
was prayed for, started vomiting foam and was 
instantly healed. 
An individual with migraine headache received 
instant healing. 
 
4. Call Centre: There is a running call centre and 
the team continuing to improve service delivery to 
be able to meet people's needs. The highest 
number of calls answered is 70 calls and many 
missed.  
 
5. Conclusion: Indeed 2020 has been a different 
year as had been prophesied and we believe great 
things are yet to come in 2021. We intend 
continuing with the monthly crusades, will ensure 
the dates are well advertised and incorporated in 
the national calendar. We are believing God for the 
salvation of many souls, for great deliverance and 
miracles to happen in the lives of people.  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

MISSIONS REPORT 
YEAR 2020 OVERVIEW 

 
 
THEME: THE UNFINISHED MANDATE: “Go ye 
therefore and make disciples of all nations….” 
Matthew 28:19 (NKJV) 
 
£100.00 Contributions  
The year started at a high note when we agreed as 
a nation to work £100.00 each towards Missions. 
This project was received very well across the nation 
deadline set for end of January 2020.  We worked in 
regions with some excelling more than others.  
 
Direct Debits & Standing Orders  
The first National Council tasked the regional 
chairing elders to go and encourage their leaders 
and saints to give maximum support through direct 
debits and standing orders. All the chairing elders 
who were present at that meeting were given the 
Direct Debit forms and we have experienced a 
notable increase in contributions since then. 
 
June & July- The Unfinished Mandate 
Project2020 
The project was received with much joy and 
anticipation by the whole nation. Although we were 
in lockdown and unable to meet physically in our 
churches, this did not deter the church to excel in 
working for their God.  
 
To kick start the project, a virtual seminar was held 
on Saturday 16th May via Zoom. It was graced by 
Apostle Steve Simukai, who taught powerfully on 
the importance of Missions. National services with 
both local and international speakers were held 
every Wednesdays; regions and assemblies also 
held their own services and prayer meetings. We 
witnessed the hand of God in the first few weeks and 
a significant amount of money was raised in a short 
space of time, which was a great encouragement for 
everyone to work tirelessly, believing God for us to 
reach our national target.  
 
Indeed, the God of our Father is faithful, He allowed 
us to reach out target of ‘1 Million British Pounds’ 
plus as a nation. Celebrations were held on 
Saturday 1st August at the EGCC, unfortunately with 
only few people present in accordance to the 
government regulations of social distancing. 
Nevertheless, we managed to stream the occasion 
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live for the whole nation via Zoom. We were 
privileged to have the International Missions 
Director, Dr D Jaricha. The cerebrations went very 
well and appreciations were done. Our father, 
Apostle Prof EH Guti prayed and blessed the nation 
for working outstandingly.  
 
Income & Expenditure 2020 
Jan – Nov  2020 Income Breakdown 
The source of our income includes 3% tithe income 
from Provinces, Standing Orders, Contributions by 
Assemblies & individuals and projects income as 
follows:-  
 

3% TITHE 45,156.00 

STANDING ORDERS 48,318.00 

PROJECT 2020 1,003,522.45 

 
Expenditure 
Our expenditure continues to rise as the cost of 
living is rising globally and as new nations are also 
being birthed. We thank God for the arrival of baby 
Morocco in this year 2020, which is the doing of the 
God of Ezekiel and marvellous in our sight. Glory to 
God. 
 
The expenses vary according to each nation’s 
needs and prevailing circumstances; the main 
expenditure areas covered are as follows: - 
 

• Mission House Rentals, bills and furniture 

• Purchase of Church Vehicles 

• Hall Hiring, musical instruments etc 

• Hiring of ground transport during church 
planting 

• Hotel Accommodation 

• Air fares 

• Food for fellowships & upkeep 

• Visa fees 

• Flyers, Banners, Advertisement & Church 
Registration 

 
Nations Supported - 2020 
Argentina, Barbados, Belize, Netherlands, Rome 
(Italy), Russia, Sweden, Finland, St Kitts, St Nevis, 
Central African Republic, Dominican Republic, 
Jamaica, Guyana, Trinidad & Tobago, Cyprus and 
Morocco. 
 
Despite the many nations being supported, the 
Missions Office still managed to meet the required 
assignments. The God of our father is gracious; the 
earth and its fullness belongs to Him, so does the 
silver and gold. May He take all the glory! 
 
Income & Expenditure Overview – 2020 (£) 
 TOTAL INCOME                                   1,096,996.45  
 TOTAL EXPENDITURE                           384,614.73  
 BALANCE C/FWD                                   712,381.72  
 
Future Plans  

• Monday Missions Collections - encourage 
assemblies & regions  

• Boost Direct Debits & Standing Orders  

• Encourage individuals to support individual 
countries and/or specific projects  

• Consult with Executive on and during next 
Missions Campaign 
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Opening Remarks 
This is a brief report covering the National Centre 
building project, in Birmingham UK.  
The National Building Committee has comprised of 
the following: - 
 
Chairperson  Elder Gerry Tegede 
Vice Chairperson   Elder Noel Dhumisani 
Committee Members   Elder Michael Masimbarasi 

Elder Stanley Ncube 
Elder Simon Mutonza 
Deacon Donald Maturure 
Elder Merry-Mercy 
Mandisodza 
Elder Ronald Bevan 
Elder Thandie Makore 

National Administrator  Overseer Daniel Makuwere 
 
Progress Update 
There has not been any construction works on the 
site in 2020 except to repair some defects on a few 
items that had been identified through snagging, on 
completion of Phase 2A of the project.  
 
During the year several of the defect’s liability 
periods for the contractors’ work ended and the 
money (retention sums) that we were holding back 
to cover any defects had to be paid to the 
contractors. 

 
Use of the Facility 
Use of the National Centre is being managed by the 
Ezekiel Guti Conference Centre Management 
Board, which is separate from the Building 
Committee. 
 
It was a joy to have our very own mother Apostle 
Eunor Guti in the National Centre over the 10 days 
prayer and fasting with the female pastors.  
 
During the early part of the year, the Secondary Hall 
was being used regularly by the local Forward in 
Faith church. Unfortunately, the building has not 
been in use since March, when physical gatherings 
of churches were stopped due to the Covid-19 
pandemic.  
 
Look Ahead to Project Delivery Strategy 
As has been reported in previous years, we divided 
the project into a few phases as follows: 
 
Phase 1 – Construction of Main Auditorium 
Demolition of existing structure 
Foundation Construction for main auditorium 
Drainage construction 
Steelwork, Wall cladding and roofing 
Floor Slab Construction 
 
Phase 2 – Partitioning & Services Fitting 
Internal brickwork and room partitioning 
Install Lighting, Heating & Ventilation 
Install plumbing 
Install Audio & Visual Equipment 
Complete other internal fittings & fixtures  
 
Phase 3 – Landscaping 
Complete tarmac in parking areas 
Paint parking bays 
External site finishing and other landscaping 
 
So far we have completed Phase 1 and are about 
60% through Phase 2. This This was most of the 
work and it enabled us to obtain the building control 
approval from Sandwell Council, to use parts of the 
building from August 2019. As and when funding 
becomes available, we aim to complete the rest of 
the project as soon as possible. 
 
Closing Remarks 
It is our hope that the Covid-19 restrictions will be 
lifted soon and that the church will have the funds to 
enable us to complete the rest of this wonderful 
project.  
 
We request that you continue to pray for us to work 
on this project with wisdom and guidance that 
comes from God.  
  

UK NATIONAL BUILDING COMMITTEE 
REPORT 
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FORWARD IN FAITH MINISTRY (UK) 

National Annual Calendar 2021 – (FINAL DRAFT) 
 

January  February  March  April  May  June  July  August  September  October  November  December  
1-10 

Ten Days 
Prayer 
7 - 10 

Regional 
Prayer 

Conventions 
 

 6  
PCs 

2 - 4  
Easter 

Conference 
 

1 
National Youth 

Council 

3 – 6 
Pastors’ 
Prayer 

Convention 
 

3 
PCs 

 
 
 

28 July - 1 
Europe 

Leader’s 
Deeperlife 
Conference 

3 – 5 
DIAMOND 

JUBILEE 
(INTERNATION

AL) 

1 -2 
MOI 

Conference    
Zones 1 & 2 

 
 

6 
UKMFCC   
Tutorials 

4 
PCs 

 13  
UKMFCC   
Tutorials 

13  
UKMFCC   
Tutorials 

 

10 
UKMFCC   
Tutorials 

6 - 9 
Church 

Anniversary 
 

10 – 13 
Elders’ Prayer 

Convention 

9 – 11 
National Youth 

Conference 
 

10 
UKMFCC    
Tutorials 

 11 
UKMFCC   
Tutorials 

 
11 

National Youth 
Council 

 

9 
UKMFCC   
Tutorials 

12 
National 
Executive 

13 
National  
Council 

11 
UKMFCC   
Tutorials 

 
11 

EGEA CRUSADE 
 

16 
UKMFCC   
Tutorials 

19 
EGEA CRUSADE 

  15  
UKMFCC   
Tutorials 

17 – 20 
Deacons’ 

Prayer 
Convention 

16 
National 
Executive 

17 
National 
Council 

 

TBC 
ISRAEL TRIP 

 

24 
EGEA CRUSADE 

21 – 24 
NATIONAL GQ 
CONFERENCE 

 
 

  
 
 

22 
EGEA CRUSADE 

18 – 20  
NATIONAL VIPs 

SEMINAR     

26 
EGEA CRUSADE 

23 
EGEA CRUSADE 

  
 

24 
EGEA CRUSADE 

 

27 
EGEA CRUSADE 

 

23 – 25 
National VIP 
Conference 

 

29 
EGEA CRUSADE 

 

26 
EGEA CRUSADE 

 

 

19 - 24 
Pastors’ 

Deeper Life 
(Harare) 

26 
National 
Executive 

27 
National  
Council 

 

26 – 27 
National 
Couples 

24 
UKCBF 

28 
EGEA CRUSADE 

24 - 27 
Believers’ 

Prayer 
Convention 

 

  
27 – 29 

NATIONAL 
SADOP 

 28 – 31 
National 

Girls/Boys 
Conference 

 

28  
End of Year 
Youth Event 

National VIP 
Thanksgiving 

Sunday 

 

NB: (DATES AGREED MUST BE RESPECTED & ANY ADJUSTMENTS/ADDITIONS DISCUSSED/AGREED WITH EXECUTIVE)                                                                                                                                                                                                    

1. UKMFCC Tutorials: 16th Jan; 13th Feb; 13th March; 10th April; 15th May; 10th July; 11th Sept; 9th October; 6th Nov; 11th Dec                                                                  
2. EGEA Crusade: 22nd Jan; 19th Feb; 26th March; 23rd April; 28th May; 24th July; 27th Aug; 24th Sept; 29th Oct; 26th Nov; 11th Dec                                                                                       
3. YOUTH National Council: 1st May; 11th Sept 

THIS CALENDAR IS SUBJECT TO CHANGE 
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FORWARD IN FAITH MINISTRY U.K.

REPORT OF THE TRUSTEES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

The trustees present their report with the financial statements of the charity for the year ended 31 March 2020.  The
trustees have adopted the provisions of Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended  Practice
applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the  UK
and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (effective 1 January 2019). 

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT
Governing document
The charity is controlled by its governing document, a deed of trust and constitutes an unincorporated charity. 

REFERENCE AND ADMINISTRATIVE DETAILS
Registered Charity number
1049383

Principal address
58 Hainge Road
Tividale
Oldbury
B69 2PD

Trustees
R MANDISODZA 
M MARIMBA 
J D K SAMASUWO 
R C BEVAN 
MRS J THONDHLANA 
T MIKE 

Auditors
E Dessai & Co Limited
Chartered Accountants
Congress House Office 10
4th Floor, 14 Lyon Road
Harrow
Middlesex
HA1 2EN

Bankers
Barclays Bank PLC
1 Churchill Place
London
B69 2PD

STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES
The trustees are responsible for preparing the Report of the Trustees and the financial statements in accordance  with
applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice). 
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FORWARD IN FAITH MINISTRY U.K.

REPORT OF THE TRUSTEES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES - continued
The law applicable to charities in England and Wales, the Charities Act 2011, Charity (Accounts and  Reports)
Regulations 2008 and the provisions of the trust deed requires the trustees to prepare financial statements for  each
financial year which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the charity and of the incoming resources  and
application of resources, including the income and expenditure, of the charity for that period. In preparing those  financial
statements, the trustees are required to 

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 
- observe the methods and principles in the Charity SORP; 
- make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
- state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed  and

explained in the financial statements; 
- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the charity  will

continue in business. 

The trustees are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any  time
the financial position of the charity and to enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the  Charities
Act 2011, the Charity (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 and the provisions of the trust deed. They are  also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charity and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention  and
detection of fraud and other irregularities. 

Approved by order of the board of trustees on  ............................................. and signed on its behalf by: 

.....................................................................
R C BEVAN - Trustee 
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS TO THE TRUSTEES OF
FORWARD IN FAITH MINISTRY U.K.

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Forward In Faith Ministry U.K. (the 'charity') for the year  ended
31 March 2020 which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement  and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial  reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting  Standards
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice). 

In our opinion the financial statements:
- give a true and fair view of the state of the charity's affairs as at 31 March 2020 and of its incoming resources  and

application of resources, for the year then ended; 
- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and 
- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Charities Act 2011. 

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable  law.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of  the
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the charity in accordance with the ethical  requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we  have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence  we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report  to
you where: 
- the trustees' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is  not

appropriate; or 
- the trustees have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast  significant

doubt about the charity's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at  least
twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue. 

Other information
The trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in  the
Annual Report, other than the financial statements and our Report of the Independent Auditors thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent  otherwise
explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in  doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our  knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies  or
apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the  financial
statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we  conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing  to
report in this regard. 

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Charities (Accounts and Reports)  Regulations
2008 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion: 
- the information given in the Report of the Trustees is inconsistent in any material respect with the financial  statements;

or 
- sufficient accounting records have not been kept; or 
- the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or 
- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit. 
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS TO THE TRUSTEES OF
FORWARD IN FAITH MINISTRY U.K.

Responsibilities of trustees
As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities, the trustees are responsible for the preparation  of
the financial statements which give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the trustees determine  is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to  fraud
or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for assessing the charity's ability to continue as a  going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of  accounting
unless the trustees either intend to liquidate the charity or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to  do
so. 

Our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
We have been appointed as auditors under Section 144 of the Charities Act 2011 and report in accordance with the  Act
and relevant regulations made or having effect thereunder. 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free  from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue a Report of the Independent Auditors that includes  our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in  accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or  error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence  the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial  Reporting
Council's website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our Report of  the
Independent Auditors. 

Use of our report
This report is made solely to the charity's trustees, as a body, in accordance with Part 4 of the Charities (Accounts  and
Reports) Regulations 2008. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the charity's trustees  those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditors' report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent  permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the charity and the charity's trustees as a  body,
for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed. 

E Dessai & Co Limited
Eligible to act as an auditor in terms of Section 1212 of the Companies Act 2006 
Chartered Accountants
Congress House Office 10
4th Floor, 14 Lyon Road
Harrow
Middlesex
HA1 2EN

Date: ............................................. 
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FORWARD IN FAITH MINISTRY U.K.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

2020 2019
Unrestricted Total

fund funds
Notes £ £

INCOME AND ENDOWMENTS FROM 
Donations and legacies 2 3,670,544 3,781,306

Investment income 3 13,814 6,565

Total 3,684,358 3,787,871

EXPENDITURE ON 
Charitable activities 4
Pastors support 1,387,112 1,285,579
Church support 367,135 537,550
Mission support 536,023 473,494
Governance cost 394,398 362,770

Other 29,322 23,421

Total 2,713,990 2,682,814

NET INCOME 970,368 1,105,057

RECONCILIATION OF FUNDS 

Total funds brought forward 8,570,594 7,465,537

TOTAL FUNDS CARRIED FORWARD 9,540,962 8,570,594

The notes form part of these financial statements
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FORWARD IN FAITH MINISTRY U.K.

BALANCE SHEET
31 MARCH 2020

2020 2019
Unrestricted Total

fund funds
Notes £ £

FIXED ASSETS 
Tangible assets 9 7,866,873 5,865,164

CURRENT ASSETS 
Debtors: amounts falling due within one year 10 30,276 35,587
Cash at bank and in hand 1,678,822 2,683,228

 1,709,098 2,718,815

CREDITORS 
Amounts falling due within one year 11 (35,009) (13,385)

NET CURRENT ASSETS 1,674,089 2,705,430

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES 9,540,962 8,570,594

NET ASSETS 9,540,962 8,570,594

FUNDS 12
Unrestricted funds:
General fund 9,540,962 8,570,594

TOTAL FUNDS 9,540,962 8,570,594

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Trustees and authorised for issue  on
............................................. and were signed on its behalf by: 

.............................................
R C BEVAN - Trustee 

.............................................
R MANDISODZA - Trustee 

The notes form part of these financial statements
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FORWARD IN FAITH MINISTRY U.K.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Basis of preparing the financial statements 
The financial statements of the charity, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been prepared  in
accordance with the Charities SORP (FRS 102) 'Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement  of
Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the  Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (effective 1 January 2019)',  Financial
Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland' and  the
Charities Act 2011. The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention. 

Financial reporting standard 102 - reduced disclosure exemptions 
The charity has taken advantage of the following disclosure exemptions in preparing these financial statements,  as
permitted by FRS 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland': 

• the requirements of Section 7 Statement of Cash Flows. 

Income 
All income is recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities once the charity has entitlement to the funds, it  is
probable that the income will be received and the amount can be measured reliably.

Expenditure 
Liabilities are recognised as expenditure as soon as there is a legal or constructive obligation committing  the
charity to that expenditure, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement  and
the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is accounted for on an accruals basis and  has
been classified under headings that aggregate all cost related to the category. Where costs cannot be  directly
attributed to particular headings they have been allocated to activities on a basis consistent with the use  of
resources.

Tangible fixed assets 
Depreciation is provided at the following annual rates in order to write off each asset over its estimated  useful
life. 

Musical instruments - 25% on reducing balance 
Fixtures and fittings - 25% on reducing balance 
Motor vehicles - 25% on reducing balance 
Office equipments - 25% on reducing balance 

Taxation 
The charity is exempt from tax on its charitable activities.

Fund accounting 
Unrestricted funds can be used in accordance with the charitable objectives at the discretion of the trustees.

Restricted funds can only be used for particular restricted purposes within the objects of the charity.  Restrictions
arise when specified by the donor or when funds are raised for particular restricted purposes.

Further explanation of the nature and purpose of each fund is included in the notes to the financial statements.

Hire purchase and leasing commitments 
Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Statement of Financial Activities on a straight line  basis
over the period of the lease. 

Pension costs and other post-retirement benefits 
The charity operates a defined contribution pension scheme. Contributions payable to the charity's  pension
scheme are charged to the  Statement of Financial Activities in the period to which they relate.
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FORWARD IN FAITH MINISTRY U.K.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

2. DONATIONS AND LEGACIES 
2020 2019

£ £
Donations 1,611,334 1,609,022
Gift aid 140,590 146,241
Free will offering 283,769 317,365
Tithes 1,564,947 1,634,326
Ministers tithes 69,904 74,352

 3,670,544 3,781,306

3. INVESTMENT INCOME 
2020 2019

£ £
Bank interest income 13,814 6,565

4. CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES COSTS 
Support

Direct costs (see
Costs note 5) Totals

£ £ £
Pastors support 1,387,112 - 1,387,112
Church support 367,135 - 367,135
Mission support 536,023 - 536,023
Governance cost - 394,398 394,398

2,290,270 394,398 2,684,668

5. SUPPORT COSTS 
Governance

costs
£

Governance cost 394,398

6. TRUSTEES' REMUNERATION AND BENEFITS 

There were no trustees' remuneration or other benefits for the year ended 31 March 2020 nor for the year  ended
31 March 2019. 

Trustees' expenses 

There were no  trustees' expenses paid for the year ended 31 March 2020 nor for the year ended 31 March 2019. 

Page 8 continued...



FORWARD IN FAITH MINISTRY U.K.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

7. STAFF COSTS 
2020 2019

£ £
Wages and salaries 908,777 939,121
Other pension costs 8,449 7,914

917,226 947,035

The average monthly number of employees during the year was as follows: 

2020 2019
Charitable Activities 43 43
Governance 12 12

55 55

No employees received emoluments in excess of £60,000. 

8. COMPARATIVES FOR THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES 
Unrestricted

fund
£

INCOME AND ENDOWMENTS FROM 
Donations and legacies 3,781,306

Investment income 6,565

Total 3,787,871

EXPENDITURE ON 
Charitable activities 
Pastors support 1,285,579
Church support 537,550
Mission support 473,494
Governance cost 362,770

Other 23,421

Total 2,682,814

NET INCOME 1,105,057

RECONCILIATION OF FUNDS 

Total funds brought forward 7,465,537

TOTAL FUNDS CARRIED FORWARD 8,570,594

Page 9 continued...



FORWARD IN FAITH MINISTRY U.K.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

9. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS 
Fixtures

Freehold Musical and
property instruments fittings

£ £ £
COST
At 1 April 2019 5,794,901 189,831 130,909
Additions 1,984,006 4,034 27,171

At 31 March 2020 7,778,907 193,865 158,080

DEPRECIATION
At 1 April 2019 - 164,933 96,271
Charge for year - 7,233 15,452

At 31 March 2020 - 172,166 111,723

NET BOOK VALUE
At 31 March 2020 7,778,907 21,699 46,357

At 31 March 2019 5,794,901 24,898 34,638

Motor Office
vehicles equipments Totals

£ £ £
COST
At 1 April 2019 2,650 52,100 6,170,391
Additions 13,849 1,971 2,031,031

At 31 March 2020 16,499 54,071 8,201,422

DEPRECIATION
At 1 April 2019 2,537 41,486 305,227
Charge for year 3,490 3,147 29,322

At 31 March 2020 6,027 44,633 334,549

NET BOOK VALUE
At 31 March 2020 10,472 9,438 7,866,873

At 31 March 2019 113 10,614 5,865,164
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FORWARD IN FAITH MINISTRY U.K.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

10. DEBTORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR 
2020 2019

£ £
Staff Advance 16,710 17,664
Rent deposit 13,297 17,654
Barclay card 268 268
Prepayments 1 1

30,276 35,587

11. CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR 
2020 2019

£ £
Taxation and social security 16,185 1,655
Other creditors 18,824 11,730

 35,009 13,385

12. MOVEMENT IN FUNDS 
Net

movement At
At 1.4.19 in funds 31.3.20

£ £ £
Unrestricted funds 
General fund 8,570,594 970,368 9,540,962

TOTAL FUNDS 8,570,594 970,368 9,540,962

Net movement in funds, included in the above are as follows: 

Incoming Resources Movement
resources expended in funds

£ £ £
Unrestricted funds 
General fund 3,684,358 (2,713,990 ) 970,368

TOTAL FUNDS 3,684,358 (2,713,990 ) 970,368
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FORWARD IN FAITH MINISTRY U.K.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

12. MOVEMENT IN FUNDS - continued 

Comparatives for movement in funds 

Net
movement At

At 1.4.18 in funds 31.3.19
£ £ £

Unrestricted funds 
General fund 7,465,537 1,105,057 8,570,594

TOTAL FUNDS 7,465,537 1,105,057 8,570,594

Comparative net movement in funds, included in the above are as follows: 

Incoming Resources Movement
resources expended in funds

£ £ £
Unrestricted funds 
General fund 3,787,871 (2,682,814 ) 1,105,057

TOTAL FUNDS 3,787,871 (2,682,814 ) 1,105,057

A current year 12 months and prior year 12 months combined position is as follows: 

Net
movement At

At 1.4.18 in funds 31.3.20
£ £ £

Unrestricted funds 
General fund 7,465,537 2,075,425 9,540,962

TOTAL FUNDS 7,465,537 2,075,425 9,540,962

A current year 12 months and prior year 12 months combined net movement in funds, included in the above  are
as follows: 

Incoming Resources Movement
resources expended in funds

£ £ £
Unrestricted funds 
General fund 7,472,229 (5,396,804 ) 2,075,425

TOTAL FUNDS 7,472,229 (5,396,804 ) 2,075,425
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FORWARD IN FAITH MINISTRY U.K.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

13. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 

There were no related party transactions for the year ended 31 March 2020. 
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FORWARD IN FAITH MINISTRY U.K.

DETAILED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

2020 2019
£ £

INCOME AND ENDOWMENTS

Donations and legacies
Donations 1,611,334 1,609,022
Gift aid 140,590 146,241
Free will offering 283,769 317,365
Tithes 1,564,947 1,634,326
Ministers tithes 69,904 74,352

 3,670,544 3,781,306

Investment income
Bank interest income 13,814 6,565

Total incoming resources 3,684,358 3,787,871

EXPENDITURE

Charitable activities
Wages 727,022 751,297
Pensions 8,449 7,914
Hire of plant and machinery 47,029 10,793
Rent, Rates and water of Pastors residence 263,192 228,222
Light & heat of Pastors residence 62,344 38,905
Advertising 205 4,517
Motor Vehicle expenses 21,231 10,336
Leaders training 5,379 -
Mission support & Donation 536,023 473,494
Church & hall hire 254,008 307,863
Conference cost 44,662 204,041
Travelling & accommodation 320,726 259,241

 2,290,270 2,296,623

Other
Depn of musical instrument 7,233 8,299
Fixtures and fittings 15,452 11,546
Motor vehicles 3,491 38
Depn of office equipment 3,146 3,538

 29,322 23,421

Support costs

Governance costs
Wages 181,755 187,824
Carried forward 181,755 187,824

This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements
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FORWARD IN FAITH MINISTRY U.K.

DETAILED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

2020 2019
£ £

Governance costs
Brought forward 181,755 187,824
Auditors' remuneration 15,000 18,600
Office Rent,Rates and water 36,350 35,849
Telephone 17,375 20,045
Postage and stationery 13,258 11,621
Repair & Renewal 18,052 15,816
Insurance 10,556 14,321
Sundry Expenses 24,774 14,799
Staff Welfare 30,257 7,102
Freight charges 5,264 4,410
Mission Transfer Fee 2,434 3,444
Professional Fees 2,907 3,087
Legal Fees 7,312 18,554
Bank Charges 20,822 7,298
Subscriptions 8,282 -

 394,398 362,770

Total resources expended 2,713,990 2,682,814

Net income 970,368 1,105,057

This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements
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FORWARD IN FAITH MINISTRY U.K.

REPORT OF THE TRUSTEES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

The trustees present their report with the financial statements of the charity for the year ended 31 March 2020.  The
trustees have adopted the provisions of Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended  Practice
applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the  UK
and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (effective 1 January 2019). 

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT
Governing document
The charity is controlled by its governing document, a deed of trust and constitutes an unincorporated charity. 

REFERENCE AND ADMINISTRATIVE DETAILS
Registered Charity number
1049383

Principal address
58 Hainge Road
Tividale
Oldbury
B69 2PD

Trustees
R MANDISODZA 
M MARIMBA 
J D K SAMASUWO 
R C BEVAN 
MRS J THONDHLANA 
T MIKE 

Auditors
E Dessai & Co Limited
Chartered Accountants
Congress House Office 10
4th Floor, 14 Lyon Road
Harrow
Middlesex
HA1 2EN

Bankers
Barclays Bank PLC
1 Churchill Place
London
B69 2PD

STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES
The trustees are responsible for preparing the Report of the Trustees and the financial statements in accordance  with
applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice). 
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FORWARD IN FAITH MINISTRY U.K.

REPORT OF THE TRUSTEES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES - continued
The law applicable to charities in England and Wales, the Charities Act 2011, Charity (Accounts and  Reports)
Regulations 2008 and the provisions of the trust deed requires the trustees to prepare financial statements for  each
financial year which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the charity and of the incoming resources  and
application of resources, including the income and expenditure, of the charity for that period. In preparing those  financial
statements, the trustees are required to 

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 
- observe the methods and principles in the Charity SORP; 
- make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
- state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed  and

explained in the financial statements; 
- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the charity  will

continue in business. 

The trustees are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any  time
the financial position of the charity and to enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the  Charities
Act 2011, the Charity (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 and the provisions of the trust deed. They are  also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charity and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention  and
detection of fraud and other irregularities. 

Approved by order of the board of trustees on  ............................................. and signed on its behalf by: 

.....................................................................
R C BEVAN - Trustee 
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS TO THE TRUSTEES OF
FORWARD IN FAITH MINISTRY U.K.

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Forward In Faith Ministry U.K. (the 'charity') for the year  ended
31 March 2020 which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement  and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial  reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting  Standards
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice). 

In our opinion the financial statements:
- give a true and fair view of the state of the charity's affairs as at 31 March 2020 and of its incoming resources  and

application of resources, for the year then ended; 
- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and 
- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Charities Act 2011. 

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable  law.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of  the
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the charity in accordance with the ethical  requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we  have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence  we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report  to
you where: 
- the trustees' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is  not

appropriate; or 
- the trustees have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast  significant

doubt about the charity's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at  least
twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue. 

Other information
The trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in  the
Annual Report, other than the financial statements and our Report of the Independent Auditors thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent  otherwise
explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in  doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our  knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies  or
apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the  financial
statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we  conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing  to
report in this regard. 

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Charities (Accounts and Reports)  Regulations
2008 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion: 
- the information given in the Report of the Trustees is inconsistent in any material respect with the financial  statements;

or 
- sufficient accounting records have not been kept; or 
- the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or 
- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit. 
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS TO THE TRUSTEES OF
FORWARD IN FAITH MINISTRY U.K.

Responsibilities of trustees
As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities, the trustees are responsible for the preparation  of
the financial statements which give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the trustees determine  is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to  fraud
or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for assessing the charity's ability to continue as a  going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of  accounting
unless the trustees either intend to liquidate the charity or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to  do
so. 

Our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
We have been appointed as auditors under Section 144 of the Charities Act 2011 and report in accordance with the  Act
and relevant regulations made or having effect thereunder. 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free  from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue a Report of the Independent Auditors that includes  our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in  accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or  error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence  the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial  Reporting
Council's website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our Report of  the
Independent Auditors. 

Use of our report
This report is made solely to the charity's trustees, as a body, in accordance with Part 4 of the Charities (Accounts  and
Reports) Regulations 2008. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the charity's trustees  those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditors' report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent  permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the charity and the charity's trustees as a  body,
for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed. 

E Dessai & Co Limited
Eligible to act as an auditor in terms of Section 1212 of the Companies Act 2006 
Chartered Accountants
Congress House Office 10
4th Floor, 14 Lyon Road
Harrow
Middlesex
HA1 2EN

Date: ............................................. 
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FORWARD IN FAITH MINISTRY U.K.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

2020 2019
Unrestricted Total

fund funds
Notes £ £

INCOME AND ENDOWMENTS FROM 
Donations and legacies 2 3,670,544 3,781,306

Investment income 3 13,814 6,565

Total 3,684,358 3,787,871

EXPENDITURE ON 
Charitable activities 4
Pastors support 1,387,112 1,285,579
Church support 367,135 537,550
Mission support 536,023 473,494
Governance cost 394,398 362,770

Other 29,322 23,421

Total 2,713,990 2,682,814

NET INCOME 970,368 1,105,057

RECONCILIATION OF FUNDS 

Total funds brought forward 8,570,594 7,465,537

TOTAL FUNDS CARRIED FORWARD 9,540,962 8,570,594

The notes form part of these financial statements
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FORWARD IN FAITH MINISTRY U.K.

BALANCE SHEET
31 MARCH 2020

2020 2019
Unrestricted Total

fund funds
Notes £ £

FIXED ASSETS 
Tangible assets 9 7,866,873 5,865,164

CURRENT ASSETS 
Debtors: amounts falling due within one year 10 30,276 35,587
Cash at bank and in hand 1,678,822 2,683,228

 1,709,098 2,718,815

CREDITORS 
Amounts falling due within one year 11 (35,009) (13,385)

NET CURRENT ASSETS 1,674,089 2,705,430

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES 9,540,962 8,570,594

NET ASSETS 9,540,962 8,570,594

FUNDS 12
Unrestricted funds:
General fund 9,540,962 8,570,594

TOTAL FUNDS 9,540,962 8,570,594

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Trustees and authorised for issue  on
............................................. and were signed on its behalf by: 

.............................................
R C BEVAN - Trustee 

.............................................
R MANDISODZA - Trustee 

The notes form part of these financial statements
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FORWARD IN FAITH MINISTRY U.K.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Basis of preparing the financial statements 
The financial statements of the charity, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been prepared  in
accordance with the Charities SORP (FRS 102) 'Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement  of
Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the  Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (effective 1 January 2019)',  Financial
Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland' and  the
Charities Act 2011. The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention. 

Financial reporting standard 102 - reduced disclosure exemptions 
The charity has taken advantage of the following disclosure exemptions in preparing these financial statements,  as
permitted by FRS 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland': 

• the requirements of Section 7 Statement of Cash Flows. 

Income 
All income is recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities once the charity has entitlement to the funds, it  is
probable that the income will be received and the amount can be measured reliably.

Expenditure 
Liabilities are recognised as expenditure as soon as there is a legal or constructive obligation committing  the
charity to that expenditure, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement  and
the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is accounted for on an accruals basis and  has
been classified under headings that aggregate all cost related to the category. Where costs cannot be  directly
attributed to particular headings they have been allocated to activities on a basis consistent with the use  of
resources.

Tangible fixed assets 
Depreciation is provided at the following annual rates in order to write off each asset over its estimated  useful
life. 

Musical instruments - 25% on reducing balance 
Fixtures and fittings - 25% on reducing balance 
Motor vehicles - 25% on reducing balance 
Office equipments - 25% on reducing balance 

Taxation 
The charity is exempt from tax on its charitable activities.

Fund accounting 
Unrestricted funds can be used in accordance with the charitable objectives at the discretion of the trustees.

Restricted funds can only be used for particular restricted purposes within the objects of the charity.  Restrictions
arise when specified by the donor or when funds are raised for particular restricted purposes.

Further explanation of the nature and purpose of each fund is included in the notes to the financial statements.

Hire purchase and leasing commitments 
Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Statement of Financial Activities on a straight line  basis
over the period of the lease. 

Pension costs and other post-retirement benefits 
The charity operates a defined contribution pension scheme. Contributions payable to the charity's  pension
scheme are charged to the  Statement of Financial Activities in the period to which they relate.
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FORWARD IN FAITH MINISTRY U.K.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

2. DONATIONS AND LEGACIES 
2020 2019

£ £
Donations 1,611,334 1,609,022
Gift aid 140,590 146,241
Free will offering 283,769 317,365
Tithes 1,564,947 1,634,326
Ministers tithes 69,904 74,352

 3,670,544 3,781,306

3. INVESTMENT INCOME 
2020 2019

£ £
Bank interest income 13,814 6,565

4. CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES COSTS 
Support

Direct costs (see
Costs note 5) Totals

£ £ £
Pastors support 1,387,112 - 1,387,112
Church support 367,135 - 367,135
Mission support 536,023 - 536,023
Governance cost - 394,398 394,398

2,290,270 394,398 2,684,668

5. SUPPORT COSTS 
Governance

costs
£

Governance cost 394,398

6. TRUSTEES' REMUNERATION AND BENEFITS 

There were no trustees' remuneration or other benefits for the year ended 31 March 2020 nor for the year  ended
31 March 2019. 

Trustees' expenses 

There were no  trustees' expenses paid for the year ended 31 March 2020 nor for the year ended 31 March 2019. 

Page 8 continued...



FORWARD IN FAITH MINISTRY U.K.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

7. STAFF COSTS 
2020 2019

£ £
Wages and salaries 908,777 939,121
Other pension costs 8,449 7,914

917,226 947,035

The average monthly number of employees during the year was as follows: 

2020 2019
Charitable Activities 43 43
Governance 12 12

55 55

No employees received emoluments in excess of £60,000. 

8. COMPARATIVES FOR THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES 
Unrestricted

fund
£

INCOME AND ENDOWMENTS FROM 
Donations and legacies 3,781,306

Investment income 6,565

Total 3,787,871

EXPENDITURE ON 
Charitable activities 
Pastors support 1,285,579
Church support 537,550
Mission support 473,494
Governance cost 362,770

Other 23,421

Total 2,682,814

NET INCOME 1,105,057

RECONCILIATION OF FUNDS 

Total funds brought forward 7,465,537

TOTAL FUNDS CARRIED FORWARD 8,570,594
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FORWARD IN FAITH MINISTRY U.K.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

9. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS 
Fixtures

Freehold Musical and
property instruments fittings

£ £ £
COST
At 1 April 2019 5,794,901 189,831 130,909
Additions 1,984,006 4,034 27,171

At 31 March 2020 7,778,907 193,865 158,080

DEPRECIATION
At 1 April 2019 - 164,933 96,271
Charge for year - 7,233 15,452

At 31 March 2020 - 172,166 111,723

NET BOOK VALUE
At 31 March 2020 7,778,907 21,699 46,357

At 31 March 2019 5,794,901 24,898 34,638

Motor Office
vehicles equipments Totals

£ £ £
COST
At 1 April 2019 2,650 52,100 6,170,391
Additions 13,849 1,971 2,031,031

At 31 March 2020 16,499 54,071 8,201,422

DEPRECIATION
At 1 April 2019 2,537 41,486 305,227
Charge for year 3,490 3,147 29,322

At 31 March 2020 6,027 44,633 334,549

NET BOOK VALUE
At 31 March 2020 10,472 9,438 7,866,873

At 31 March 2019 113 10,614 5,865,164
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FORWARD IN FAITH MINISTRY U.K.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

10. DEBTORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR 
2020 2019

£ £
Staff Advance 16,710 17,664
Rent deposit 13,297 17,654
Barclay card 268 268
Prepayments 1 1

30,276 35,587

11. CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR 
2020 2019

£ £
Taxation and social security 16,185 1,655
Other creditors 18,824 11,730

 35,009 13,385

12. MOVEMENT IN FUNDS 
Net

movement At
At 1.4.19 in funds 31.3.20

£ £ £
Unrestricted funds 
General fund 8,570,594 970,368 9,540,962

TOTAL FUNDS 8,570,594 970,368 9,540,962

Net movement in funds, included in the above are as follows: 

Incoming Resources Movement
resources expended in funds

£ £ £
Unrestricted funds 
General fund 3,684,358 (2,713,990 ) 970,368

TOTAL FUNDS 3,684,358 (2,713,990 ) 970,368
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FORWARD IN FAITH MINISTRY U.K.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

12. MOVEMENT IN FUNDS - continued 

Comparatives for movement in funds 

Net
movement At

At 1.4.18 in funds 31.3.19
£ £ £

Unrestricted funds 
General fund 7,465,537 1,105,057 8,570,594

TOTAL FUNDS 7,465,537 1,105,057 8,570,594

Comparative net movement in funds, included in the above are as follows: 

Incoming Resources Movement
resources expended in funds

£ £ £
Unrestricted funds 
General fund 3,787,871 (2,682,814 ) 1,105,057

TOTAL FUNDS 3,787,871 (2,682,814 ) 1,105,057

A current year 12 months and prior year 12 months combined position is as follows: 

Net
movement At

At 1.4.18 in funds 31.3.20
£ £ £

Unrestricted funds 
General fund 7,465,537 2,075,425 9,540,962

TOTAL FUNDS 7,465,537 2,075,425 9,540,962

A current year 12 months and prior year 12 months combined net movement in funds, included in the above  are
as follows: 

Incoming Resources Movement
resources expended in funds

£ £ £
Unrestricted funds 
General fund 7,472,229 (5,396,804 ) 2,075,425

TOTAL FUNDS 7,472,229 (5,396,804 ) 2,075,425
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FORWARD IN FAITH MINISTRY U.K.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

13. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 

There were no related party transactions for the year ended 31 March 2020. 
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FORWARD IN FAITH MINISTRY U.K.

DETAILED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

2020 2019
£ £

INCOME AND ENDOWMENTS

Donations and legacies
Donations 1,611,334 1,609,022
Gift aid 140,590 146,241
Free will offering 283,769 317,365
Tithes 1,564,947 1,634,326
Ministers tithes 69,904 74,352

 3,670,544 3,781,306

Investment income
Bank interest income 13,814 6,565

Total incoming resources 3,684,358 3,787,871

EXPENDITURE

Charitable activities
Wages 727,022 751,297
Pensions 8,449 7,914
Hire of plant and machinery 47,029 10,793
Rent, Rates and water of Pastors residence 263,192 228,222
Light & heat of Pastors residence 62,344 38,905
Advertising 205 4,517
Motor Vehicle expenses 21,231 10,336
Leaders training 5,379 -
Mission support & Donation 536,023 473,494
Church & hall hire 254,008 307,863
Conference cost 44,662 204,041
Travelling & accommodation 320,726 259,241

 2,290,270 2,296,623

Other
Depn of musical instrument 7,233 8,299
Fixtures and fittings 15,452 11,546
Motor vehicles 3,491 38
Depn of office equipment 3,146 3,538

 29,322 23,421

Support costs

Governance costs
Wages 181,755 187,824
Carried forward 181,755 187,824

This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements
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FORWARD IN FAITH MINISTRY U.K.

DETAILED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

2020 2019
£ £

Governance costs
Brought forward 181,755 187,824
Auditors' remuneration 15,000 18,600
Office Rent,Rates and water 36,350 35,849
Telephone 17,375 20,045
Postage and stationery 13,258 11,621
Repair & Renewal 18,052 15,816
Insurance 10,556 14,321
Sundry Expenses 24,774 14,799
Staff Welfare 30,257 7,102
Freight charges 5,264 4,410
Mission Transfer Fee 2,434 3,444
Professional Fees 2,907 3,087
Legal Fees 7,312 18,554
Bank Charges 20,822 7,298
Subscriptions 8,282 -

 394,398 362,770

Total resources expended 2,713,990 2,682,814

Net income 970,368 1,105,057

This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements
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